Public Document Pack

CITY
LONDON

Highgate Wood Joint Consultative Committee

Date: WEDNESDAY, 22 APRIL 2015

Time: 12.00 pm

Venue: HIGHGATE WOOD OFFICES, HIGHGATE WOOD, MUSWELL HILL
ROAD, N10 3JN

Members:  Jeremy Simons (Chairman) Peter Corley (Tree Trust for Haringey)
Virginia Rounding (Deputy Councillor Gail Engert (London Borough
Chairman) of Haringey)
Ann Holmes Lynne Featherstone (MP for Hornsey
Professor John Lumley and Wood Green)
Barbara Newman Councillor Bob Hare (London Borough of
Stephanie Beer (Muswell Hill & Haringey)
Fortis Green Association) Lucy Roots (Muswell Hill Friends of the
Jan Brooker (Highgate Earth)
Conservation Area Advisory Alison Watson (Friends of Queen's
Committee) Wood)
Marguerite Clark (Highgate Michael Hammerson (Highgate Society)
Society)

Enquiries:  David Arnold

David.Arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk

The meeting will be preceded by a walk — would Committee members please meet at
10:00am outside the Pavilion Café.

Lunch will be served at the rising of the Committee.

NB: Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or video recording

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive




10.

11.

AGENDA

Public Agenda
APOLOGIES

MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA

MINUTES
To agree the public minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2014.

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 6)

SUPERINTENDENT'S UPDATE REPORT
Report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath.
For Information
(Pages 7 - 18)

OPEN SPACES LEGISLATION
Report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath, received by the Hampstead Heath
Consultative Committee on 9 March 2015.
For Information
(Pages 19 - 26)

UPDATE ON TREE SAFETY MANAGEMENT AT THE NORTH LONDON OPEN
SPACES DIVISION
Report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath.
For Information
(Pages 27 - 40)

CYCLING IN HIGHGATE WOOD
Report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath.
For Decision
(Pages 41 - 46)

THE STATE OF UK PUBLIC PARKS 2014 - RENAISSANCE TO RISK?
Report of the Director of Open Spaces, considered by the Hampstead Heath,
Highgate Wood & Queen’s Park Committee on 20 January 2015.
For Information
(Pages 47 - 74)
QUESTIONS

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
To note the date of the next meeting to be held on 18 November 2015.



Agenda Iltem 3

HIGHGATE WOOD JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 19 November 2014

Minutes of the meeting of the Highgate Wood Joint Consultative Committee held at
Committe Room 4 - 2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Wednesday, 19 November
2014 at 11.45 am

Present

Members:

Jeremy Simons (Chairman)

Virginia Rounding (Deputy Chairman)

Ann Holmes

Professor John Lumley

Barbara Newman

Stephanie Beer (Muswell Hill & Fortis Green Association)
Jan Brooker (Highgate Conservation Area Advisory Committee)
Councillor Gail Engert (London Borough of Haringey)
Councillor Bob Hare (London Borough of Haringey)

Lucy Roots (Muswell Hill Friends of the Earth)

Michael Hammerson (Highgate Society)

Officers:

David Arnold Town Clerk’s Department

Bob Warnock Superintendent of Hampstead Heath
Jonathan Meares Highgate Wood & Conservation Manager
Richard Gentry Constabulary & Queen's Park Manager

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Marguerite Clark (Highgate Society), Peter
Corley (Tree Trust for Haringey), and Alison Watson (Friends of Queen’s
Wood).

Chairman’s Welcome

The Chairman welcomed Professor John Lumley and Councillor Gail Engert to
their first meeting of the Committee.

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were none.

3. MINUTES

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the last meeting held on 30 April 2014 be
agreed as a correct record.

Page 1



Matters Arising

LiDar Survey
In response to a question from Michael Hammerson, the Superintendent of

Hampstead Heath advised that results of the LiDar survey would be made
available to Members upon request.

Conservation Management Plan Objectives — Progress

The Superintendent advised that events in Highgate Wood during summer
2015 would be publicised on social media and a new online newsletter. Staff at
the Wood had also recently obtained an iPad to aide with the publicising of
events through social media.

Tree Management

The Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager advised that a short
presentation on iTree would be provided at the next meeting once the results of
a London-wide survey had been finalised.

SUPERINTENDENT'S UPDATE FOR NOVEMBER 2014

The Consultative Committee received a report of the Superintendent of
Hampstead Heath that provided an update to Members on management and
operational activities in Highgate Wood over the past six months.

Budget-identifying cost saving and increasing income

The Superintendent advised the Committee that the Open Spaces Department
was required to find £2.189 million of savings over the next three years.
However, there was minimal scope for savings and reductions at the Wood
other than increasing income from licensing, operational efficiency of sports
pitches, and turnover at the Café. Members commended the Open Spaces
Department for identifying the minimal savings at the Wood.

In response to a question from Councillor Bob Hare, the Highgate Wood and
Conservation Manager advised that it would be difficult to increase income from
filming as the Wood was not very vehicle-accessible and closures of certain
areas would affect users of the Wood and local residents. He added that the
fees charged for filming tended to be quite low.

In response to a question from Michael Hammerson, the Superintendent
advised that the possibility of increasing income through the provision of higher
and further education courses on conservation and woodland management
would be considered as part of the Education Strategy, which was currently
being developed. The Deputy Chairman suggested that the Strategy should be
presented to the Education Board for consideration.

Roman Kiln Project progress

The Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager advised that a Gateway Two
report regarding this joint community project would be submitted to the
Corporate Project Board Sub Committee shortly. Members suggested that the
report should include other historical aspects of the Wood too.

Page 2



In response to a member’s question regarding publicity for the project, the
Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager advised that local media had
covered a re-enactment of Roman Kiln use in 2010. The Chairman noted that a
paper on the re-enactment had been published in the London Archaeologist
journal.

The Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager added that information was
provided for users of the Wood and the project was referenced on the City of
London Corporation and the Highgate Wood websites. Further profile-raising
would be possible once the project had progressed through the Gateway Two
stage.

Sustainability
The Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager advised that the bi-annual

Sustainability Audit was coming to an end and the results would inform the
Departmental Improvement Plan to be drafted soon.

Members were advised that the Wood’s overall sustainability performance had
been very good. The photo-voltaic system performed well over the protracted
good weather during summer 2014 and there had been an increasing emphasis
on moving away from petrol engine-powered toward battery-powered
equipment.

Conservation Management Plan Summary Document

Members were advised that the maps, path profiles and fonts had all been
amended and the Middlesex Forest quote removed following discussion and
suggestions made at the previous meeting in April 2014. The document would
be circulated shortly so Members were asked to submit any final minor
comments to the Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager as soon as
possible.

Oak Decline

The Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager advised that Oak Decline had
reduced but there was still some significant leaf damage; a ‘do nothing’
approach could result in a loss of all Oak trees within 90 years. He added that
2014 had seen very few acorns at the Wood, which was not unusual due to the
prolific mast year in 2013.

In response to a member’s question, the Highgate Wood and Conservation
Manager advised that there had been few leaf-lying moths found in this year’s
survey but a wide variety of weevil species were identified.

Tree Disease and Biosecurity issues

Members were advised that a programme of containment and eradication of
Oak Processionary Moth (OPM) was launched by the Forestry Commission in
summer 2013. There had been further advances by the pest and there was
now an infestation at the Regent’s Park Zoo, just over two kilometres from the
Wood. The Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager and the Division’s Tree
Officer were finalising an action plan to deal with OPM’s inevitable arrival at one
of the North London Open Spaces.

Page 3



In response to a question from Councillor Bob Hare, the Highgate Wood and
Conservation Manager advised that OPM would have little effect on established
healthy trees but it could have a detrimental effect to stressed trees at the
Wood.

Play Area and Recreation

The Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager advised that the play area
safety surface improvements were successfully completed in time for the busy
summer holiday period. A total area of 350m sg. was converted to a rubberised
surface consisting of the space net unit and the cluster of units immediately
adjacent, all of which must have an impact-absorbing surface to protect against
injuries. Members were also advised that the roof of the hut in the Play Area
would be repaired shortly.

The Superintendent added that the new safety surface had received much
positive feedback from users of the Wood. The feedback was endorsed by
Stephanie Beer, who had recently experienced the new surface with her
grandchildren.

Community and Events

Members were advised that the volunteering sessions led by Heath Hands, in
which volunteers would carry out clearing and trimming throughout the Wood,
were becoming more popular and more frequent. The Committee thanked
Heath Hands’ dedicated team of volunteers for their hard work over the past six
months.

The Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager advised that a Friends of
Highgate Wood group could be developed to allow local volunteers to
concentrate their work at the Wood. It was suggested that further incentives
could be offered to volunteers, such as staff at the Wood giving CV references
to acknowledge the important work they carry out.

Members were also advised that Heritage Day attracted around 2,000 visitors
to the Wood. The Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager added that the
number of visitors in a year could reach one million soon.

Pavilion Café

The Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager advised that a temporary
covered dog-friendly area had received only positive feedback since its
inception so members of the Consultative Committee were whether or not it
should be made a permanent feature. Members supported the dog-friendly
area and agreed that it be made more permanent.

Development Issues

Members were advised that the Open Spaces Department had submitted an
objection to the proposed redevelopment of the former Haringey Magistrates
Court as it would have an adverse effect on the landscape at the Wood.

RESOLVED - That the report be noted.

Page 4



5. FEES AND CHARGES REPORT
The Consultative Committee received a report of the Superintendent of
Hampstead Heath that set out the proposed increase to fees and charges for
cricket and football at Highgate Wood in 2015/16. Members were advised that a
more fundamental review of fees and charges, including full benchmarking,
would be carried out by the end of 2015.

Members were advised that the charges for children’s football coaching at
Queen’s Park would not be included in the proposed changes to fees and
charges as they would become part of the licensing regime with effect from
spring 2015.

In response to members’ questions regarding the possibility of weddings and
civil ceremonies being held at the Wood, the Highgate Wood and Conservation
Manager advised the marriage licence would have to be attached to a built
structure such as the Café or a named tree. Members noted that the lack of
available car-parking at the Wood would be an issue for weddings but
acknowledged that a limit could be placed on numbers within the licence. The
Highgate Wood and Conservation Manager would look into the possibility of
weddings and civil ceremonies being held at the Wood.

RESOLVED - That:-
a) the proposed fees and charges for 2015/16 be noted; and
b) the possibility of weddings and civil ceremonies being held at Highgate
Wood be considered and a report be presented to the next meeting if
appropriate.

6. QUESTIONS
In response to a question from Councillor Bob Hare, the Highgate Wood and
Conservation Manager advised that bee hives had been reintroduced to the
Wood in spring 2014. He added that the Wood is an ideal environment for bees
and reported that the general insect population had increased significantly in
recent years.

It was RESOLVED that an update would be provided at the next meeting.

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
The Chairman advised members of the Consultative Committee that the Wood
had recently been awarded a Green Flag and a Green Heritage Award.

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED - That the date of the next meeting of the Highgate Wood Joint
Consultative Committee, to be held on Wednesday 22 April 2015, be noted.

The meeting ended at 12.45 pm

Chairman

Page 5



Contact Officer: David Arnold
David.Arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

Committee(s) Dated:
Highgate Wood Joint Consultative Committee 22 April 2015
Subject: Public

Superintendent’s update for April 2015

Report of: For Information

Superintendent of Hampstead Heath

Summary

This report provides an update to members of the Highgate Wood Joint Consultative
Committee on management and operational activities in Highgate Wood over the
past six months. The report describes progress on cost saving and income
generation, sustainability, conservation and woodland management, infrastructure
and facilities. The report also includes a summary of progress on objectives in the
Conservation Management Plan. As well as information on progress with The
Roman Kiln Project and new signage and interpretation which is part of the work
around the ‘New identity’ Project.

Recommendations

Members are asked to note the content of this report

That the views of the Highgate Wood Joint Consultative Committee be
conveyed to the Hampstead Heath Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park
Committee at their meeting in June 2015.

Main Report

Background

1.

The Highgate Wood Team has had a productive winter, with some disruption
to operational work due to bad weather, including several site closures due to
high winds and rain. It has also been another wet but relatively mild winter
which has caused some cancellations of sport fixtures due to waterlogging on
the main field. There is a new impetus to push forward with the Roman Kiln
Project and complete the Heritage Lottery Fund Application. Income is
incrementally increasing with more licenced events through the winter months
as well as an increase in charges for the sport activities. The Café have
made a number of improvements to the internal serving area and the external
dog friendly area has been a major success. There is promising progress
with achieving the objectives laid out it in the Conservation Management Plan
in a number of areas and Heath Hands volunteers sessions continue to grow
in popularity. This year there will be a growing focus on making savings and
keeping costs down, especially staffing. This is going to present some major

Page 7




challenges when the summer season begins and the opening hours extend to
their maximum.

Budget — progress on the Strategic Based Review

2.

Licenced events continued through the autumn and winter months providing
useful additional income. There is an additional environmental education
activity this year which started running activities in January. There is capacity
to accommodate other activities but due consideration has to be given to the
impact these regular activities have on the woodland. This will be referred to
later on in this report with the growing realisation that increasing visitor
numbers and additional activities are having a negative impact on the
woodland component of the site.

Budget spend this year has been very carefully monitored. There has been a
special focus on identifying ways of improving the service by working
proactively with other teams on Hampstead Heath and also the Heath
Constabulary. The Team are having to make changes in the way in which
they work and the forthcoming season will bring some significant challenges
with providing adequate staffing cover while having to make significant
reductions in overtime and additional staffing costs. In principal with planned
casual staff provision the Team should be able to provide adequate staffing
provision but there will be occasions where arrangements have to be made at
very short notice due to unplanned absence.

Highgate Wood is in a different position from the rest of the Division in that it
has already made a 12.5% saving when the Team was reduced to 6
permanent staff from 7, in April 2014. Part of that process involved a team
restructure which resulted in the two Play Area Attendants being incorporated
into the Wood Keeper roster and taking on the role of locking and unlocking
the site. The roster has gone through a series of revisions to improve the
provision of cover and also provide an adequate work/life balance especially
in the summer months.

The coming summer season will present new challenges to the Team. The
key factor is to plan ahead and try to anticipate as far in advance as possible
the periods of high visitor numbers and the requirement to draft in extra staff
resource. Itis important to realise also that the other Divisional Teams will be
going through the same exercise of reducing costs, which will require careful
prioritisation.

Roman Kiln Project

6.

Work is now underway to gather all the supporting documents that have to be
submitted with the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) application. Letters of support
need to be obtained from local schools, The Museum of London and Bruce
Castle Museum. There are also several key individuals, who form part of the
Roman Kiln Project Working Group who we hope will also be able to provide
letters of support, including a number of people who worked on the original
archaeological excavations that uncovered the kilns and pottery in the late
1960’s.

Page 8



In order to progress the Project and submit the application later this summer
the Highgate Wood Manager has commissioned the small consultancy who
produced the Interpretation and Display Plans for the reconfigured education
building to help with assembling and submitting the HLF application.
Continuing with the same consultancy will enable the project to move to the
application stage without losing continuity and the detailed knowledge that
they already have on the Project.

It is very encouraging that the Project has received so much local and wider
support form a number of different organisations and individuals, and it is
hoped that the ‘Our Heritage’ Funding Application will be approved and the
Project can be completed.

Sustainability

9.

10.

11.

12.

Highgate Wood continues to promote sustainability across all areas including
encouraging the Pavilion Café to recycle all their waste materials. There are
three 700 litre recycling containers which are collected weekly by the
Hampstead Heath Waste and Recycling Team, and then stored for removal
from Kenwood Yard.

The general waste continues to be removed by the City of London’s term
waste contractor Amey, and taken for disposal at Walbrook Wharf. The waste
material is unloaded into barges at Walbrook Wharf and then shipped up river
to an incineration plant at Belvedere, where the material is burnt to generate
energy.

The photo-voltaic installation on the machine shed has now produced well
over 5,000 kilowatt hours in electricity which has made a significant difference
in National Grid power consumption, and helped greatly to reduce Highgate
Wood’s electricity usage. We will be looking at the possibilities of installing a
further photo voltaic system on the office roof which, would be smaller than
the machine shed but, would provide enough power to run the two personal
computers and other electrical appliances.

The Open Spaces Department has recently launched its Sustainability
Improvement Plan 2015-2017, focusing on three actions. There will be an
increased focus on driving down energy and water usage, a department wide
review and rationalisation of vehicle and machinery use, and a programme of
delivering further Solar Power Projects or other sustainable energy
technologies. This will link up with a department wide cost saving and income
generation drive. Highgate Wood will be contributing to the Plan and will be
working with Hampstead Heath and Queen’s Park to draft and implement a
local Improvement Plan to achieve the three actions set out in the
Department’s Improvement Plan.

Conservation Management Plan progress

13.

Under the Heritage section objectives there have been some significant
progress on the Roman Kiln Project, already mentioned above. There has
also been some additional work carried out to protect an important section of
the double earthwork structure close to the Memorial Fountain which is
suffering from increased footfall and erosion. It is really important to continue

Page 9



14.

15.

16.

to look for opportunities to investigate the numerous wood banks and large
double ditch and bank structure whose purpose and origin continue to be a
mystery.

A member of the Highgate Wood Joint Consultative Committee joined the
Highgate Wood Manager to view a recent LIDAR survey of Highgate Wood
and Queen’s Wood in the City Surveyors Department in the Guildhall on the
24™ March 2015. While the images were extremely interesting the definition
of the survey is not sufficiently detailed to be of any real value. The Highgate
Wood Manager happened to attend a fascinating presentation on local
geology at the Friends of Queen’s Park Annual General Meeting on the same
day and was able to show the images to the geologist.

Under the Natural Environment objectives, there has also been promising
progress, with a new survey started on natural oak regeneration and existing
recent planting. There is more information on this work later on in this report.
Other areas of progress are working more closely with the Forestry
Commission and also the Conservation Team in Haringey on various projects
centred around woodland management.

Under Community and Recreation there has been excellent progress with
increasing Heath Hands Volunteers sessions in the Wood, and building a core
group of committed volunteers who's work focuses on specific management
issues referenced in the Conservation Management Plan. The Team have
also embarked on a programme of improving and updating the signage
around the site, and introducing the ‘New Identity’ format for presenting
information to the public. This will include new maps to replace the older now
fading maps posted at the main noticeboards, and also a series of themed
information boards displayed at the Education Building.

Woodland Conservation and Tree Management

17.

18.

Work continues with Heath Hands Volunteers to construct dead hedging
around sensitive areas where there has been significant compaction, and
encourage natural regeneration and soil remediation. The dead hedging
provides useful habitat for ground nesting birds, and also has the additional
advantage of containing the natural leaf litter layer and arresting erosion.
There have been 8 volunteer sessions since early December and the all have
been well attended, with a member of the Highgate Wood Team supervising
each session.

On the 23™ March Highgate Wood hosted a meeting of the England
Woodland Biodiversity Group (EWBG). This group co-ordinates
implementation of the woodland sector of the England Biodiversity Strategy
and the Habitat Action Plans for Native Woodland in England. EWBG is made
up of a broad cross section of the Biodiversity and woodland sector, and
includes representatives from the Forestry Commission, Woodland Trust, and
Natural England. The group is currently engaged in developing a woodland
survey protocol for assessing the condition of woodland, which will be used to
measure the delivery of the Governments Biodiversity Strategy 2020. This
Strategy makes a commitment to ‘restoring at least 15% of degraded
ecosystems as a contribution to climate change adaptation and mitigation’. A
significant part of this will be woodland habitat.

Page 10



19.

20.

21.

The EWBG approached the Highgate Wood Manager through the London
office of the Forestry Commission, seeking an Ancient Woodland site in the
London area within short walking distance of public transport links. The day
proved to be very useful for the Highgate Wood Team as the EWBG carried
out a field exercise to test out the draft woodland assessment form. The
group split into three separate groups and surveyed a series of random plots
within the woodland. The results and feedback from the group were broadly
similar and very revealing through not necessarily surprising. Highgate Wood
has two important issues to resolve; firstly the sheer number of users is
causing increasing erosion and fragmentation of the remaining woodland
understory, and significantly reducing natural regeneration. The second factor
is linked directly to the first, and concerns the progressive change of the
woodland to a high forest canopy, caused principally by the ‘overstood’
hornbeam coppice. The net result is low light levels, and consequently very
low natural regeneration.

37

Figure 1: Erosion of understory and compaction

These two factors are shared with many other woodland sites and the
comments come as no surprise to the Highgate Wood Team. The fact that
this message came from a group of very experienced and knowledgeable
professionals perhaps made it all the more powerful. It is hoped that the link
with the EWBG can be developed and perhaps could provide further guidance
on the long term management of the site and ensuring the continuity of the
woodland. In simple terms the answer is to increase the size of future
conservation areas significantly and possibly prevent access for longer
periods. Convincing Highgate Wood’s many users that this is the only way to
guarantee the continuity of the site may not be easy.

Highgate Wood has introduced a severe weather protocol to deal with the
threat of high winds and heavy rain. The protocol relies heavily on an
increasingly accurate weather forecasting service provided by the

Page 11



Meteological Office, which allows the Team to operate a 24 hour warning
notice to the public that the Wood may be closed if winds speed becomes
potentially dangerous. The threshold is 40mph, and if the forecast predicts
winds, and more importantly gusts, of more than 40mph, the Team can then
plan for a possible closure. This protocol has been tested and the Wood has
now been closed on three occasions over the last four months, once in
October and twice very recently at the end of March. On all three occasions
the forecasted severe weather did occur and there was significant tree
damage.

Oak decline and oak regeneration

22.

23.

24.

In the last report submitted in November 2014 there was mention of a new
survey of natural oak regeneration and also monitoring of the small population
of young planted oaks. This field work for this survey started in late 2014 and
continued through the winter months. This is intended to compliment the
extensive work already achieved capturing the decline of the oak population
on site. A Highgate Wood Keeper carried out the surveying work and the
senior Ecologist for Hampstead Heath provided support in downloading and
processing all the GPS data collected, and then mapping the surveyed trees
(see figure 2).

This work is an important step towards trying to measure how the Wood is
regenerating and also may indicate what changes we need to make in future
management. There is already a reference above to the growing pressures
that the site faces because of visitor and all the various activities that take
place on the site. The visitor logger devices are recording increased number
of visitors. The team have calculated that the number of people visiting the
site between January 2014 and January 2014 has now risen to 1,019,414.
This is a significant but not surprising finding as in the previous report in April
2014 we recorded a figure approaching 900,000.

This information will be used to convey to the public the vulnerability of the
woodland habitat and the importance of creating the conservation areas in
order to allow areas to regenerate naturally and ensure that the site continues
to thrive and provide a haven for both people and the wildlife population.

Tree disease and biosecurity issues

25.

Oak Processionary Moth (OPM) is advancing ever nearer and may well get as
far as Hampstead Heath this coming summer. The caterpillar has been found
in several locations in Regent’s Park, and is also present a few kilometres to
the west in Brent Park just off the North Circular. The Division now has an
Action Plan for OPM which has been circulated to all the sites and a number
of staff have been on training days organised by the Forestry Commission. In
the autumn of 2014 an additional London wide survey was carried out to
identify how far the pest had spread over the 2014 season and how effective
the eradication programme had been. The results are shown in figure 3.

Page 12



¢ Highgate Wood

4 Locations of protected
oak seedlings

®
’ D o, NEO—
Fpe—— a4

|

\ T
— kT & o v Py Corvrnan st v
0 2% T, Es1, HERE, DeLorme, Mapmyindia; © OpénSireetiap contrioutors, and the GIS User communisy

Figure 3: Red dots are confirmed OPM sites and green were clear of OPM

Page 13



Play area and Recreation

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

The play area continues to be very popular and has increasing visitor
numbers corresponding with the increasing visitors to the Wood. The tiger
mulch surface in the main section of the play area has been a great success
and is achieving the staff time savings for which it was intended. There are
some additional repairs to be made to some of the older equipment, including
the wooden shelter, but there should be no requirement to make any
substantial investment this financial year.

The sports field is gradually recovering from the wet winter months and
starting to dry out, although there are some drainage issues to be resolved
before the cricket season gets underway. As a result of the inclement
weather several football matches had to be cancelled. The Teams have all
managed to complete their fixtures quota for the season, so there was no
requirement to reimburse any of the bookings.

The Highgate Wood Team had to reinstall and construct more wooden
boardwalks sections for the bottom part of the sport’s field behind the practice
cricket nets so members of the public could access that area for walking and
running. This area will need to be inspected every winter due to poor
drainage, it being the lowest part of the field.

Spring signifies the coming of summer and so the cricket preparations have
begun in earnest. The cricket table has had its first few cuts of the year which
also helps with early rolling. The markings for the cricket squares are all set
out. One of the operations that needs to re-considered is the requirement to
hand weed the cricket square; a task that takes a great deal of staff time and
is very labour intensive. The alternative is to use chemicals, not necessarily
ideal for the woodland environment but a method that the Team will have to
consider in the near future, as was utilised in the past. Clearly this will need
to be carefully considered and it may be possible to use other methods to
reduce the growth of weeds on the square.

The cricket score hut has been refurbished with a new facia to replace the
original unit which had been repeatedly repaired but had finally come to the
end of its service life. The field and cricket square have just had their
covering of spring / summer fertilizer which will encourage good vigorous
green growth.

The children’s football coaching has now begun (Easter holidays) and will
continue for each school holiday and the six weeks of summer. The trim tralil
items are inspected on a weekly basis and are proving to be very popular with
the members of public.

Pavilion Café update

31.

The Pavilion Café has had a reasonable winter. The current lease holder has
used the quiet trading period to make a series of improvements to both the
internal serving area and also carried out a spring clean of the storage area
next to the compactor. One of the metal storage containers used by the Café
has been removed and this has released additional storage space for the
Team to relocate the recycling bins and some of the other items that were
previously left next to the access road. The overall appearance of the area is

Page 14



32.

greatly improved and the intention now is to bring this area back into
woodland.

The period of ‘soft market testing’ has been extended due to a delay in
commencing the Project and this will now extend into the early summer before
the process develops into a tendering exercise. Itis assumed that the present
lease holder will express an interest in continuing to manage the facility.

Community and Events

33.

34.

There has been a significant increase in staff time devoted towards education
activities, partly due to the increased number of licenced events that are
taking place in Highgate Wood. The number of people attending the various
fixtures dropped slightly; this year a total of 2,266 attended educational based
activities mostly school groups and other licenced activities. The numbers
attending the public walks, events, and volunteer activities was 945, also a
small drop on last year. The reduction in numbers are very small and were
probably due to the less clement weather over the summer.

The diarised events over the winter and early spring have been very well
attended and another interesting programme is already being advertised for
the forthcoming year. Highgate Wood's Heritage Day Event has been
renamed ‘Community Day’ and will be held on the 6™ September this year.
Some of the activities will be scaled down at this year’s event to reflect the
requirement to reduce costs. The event was always intended to be and will
remain for the local community and provide an opportunity to promote
understanding and support for local woodland and it's conservation, and of
course the Local Community Groups who work so hard to do this.

Infrastructure and buildings

35.

36.

A Team will be staring work after Easter to carry out repairs to the main
pathways, which should make a major difference to the quality of the surface.
These works are simply to restore the bound gravel surfaces and should not
take too long to complete. The City Surveyors have also contracted in a
fencing company to make a number of repairs to the existing fencing,
including a new layout at Onslow gate entrance (see figure 4) that allows
vehicles to park inside the Wood when entering the site from the road. This
new arrangement allows pedestrians adequate room to pass on the pavement
and prevents longer vehicles form protruding out into the road.

The office has had a new boiler installed and this is now working well, after a
period of teething problems with the circulation system and some of the
radiators.

Page 15



Figure 4: New layout at Onslow Gate

Corporate & Strategic Implications

37.

The proposal contributes to producing a Clean, Pleasant and Attractive City
(Objective CPAC4) and to Conserve and Protect Biodiversity (Goal 15) in the
Community Strategy. It will help fulfil the Department’s Strategic Goals and
Objectives 2 (To adopt sustainable and sensitive working practices, promote
biodiversity and protect the Open Spaces for the enjoyment of future
generations) and 5 (To ensure that the profile of the Open Spaces is further
recognised through working in partnership with others to promote our sites
and through influencing policies at a local, regional and national level).

Implications

38.

There are no financial implications arising from this report. The operational
requirements highlighted in the report will be met from the Superintendent’s
Local Risk Budget.

Conclusion

39.

The Highgate Wood Team faces some significant challenges this coming
year, and the period up to 2018. The combination of financial constraints and
the expectation to continue to deliver a high quality community focused
service will require some careful management. The Conservation
Management Plan may be a useful tool in supporting change as there is
recognition that the continuity of the site’s natural fabric is paramount and the
City of London have a legal duty under the foundation legislation to preserve
the character of the woodland and conserve it for future generations.
However, there is also the commitment to allow open access to the public.
The real question is how to make the public understand the vulnerability of the

Page 16



woodland environment and to accept that in order to conserve it for the future
larger parts of it may have to have restricted access.

Appendices
e None

Jonathan Meares

Highgate Wood, Conservation, Trees and Sustainability Manager
Open Spaces

T: 07500 786 067

E: Jonathan.meares@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 5

Committee:

Date:

Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee

Highgate Wood Joint Consultative Committee

9 March 2015

22 April 2015

Subject:
Open Spaces Legislation

Public

Report of:
Superintendent of Hampstead Heath

For Information

Summary

This Report advises the Consultative Committees of an informal consultation
concerning possible modifications to the legislation governing the City
Corporation’s Open Spaces. The main aims of such changes would be to clarify
the Corporation’s management powers, to provide greater flexibility to generate
revenue for the benefit of the Open Spaces, and to strengthen enforcement
powers. The Management Committee has agreed that the views of local interest
groups should be informally canvassed before any such proposals are advanced,
and to this end a public briefing paper (appended to this Report) has been
produced. Subject to the views received, it is anticipated that more detailed
proposals will be drawn up for consideration by the relevant Committees, with a
view to depositing a private Bill in Parliament in November 2015.

Recommendation

Members are asked to:

e Receive this Report, and to contribute views on the legislation as set out in
Appendix 1.

Main Report

1. The legislation governing the City Corporation’s Open Spaces has in most
cases served its purpose well for many years. Its age and complexity mean,
however, that it is not always easy to operate in practice. Moreover, it arguably
fails to reflect the full range of problems and opportunities which arise in the
modern-day management and use of the spaces. Following preliminary internal
discussions, the Remembrancer and the Director of Open Spaces have formed
the view that there may be considerable merit in seeking amendments to the
legislation. This could be achieved through the promotion of a private Bill in
Parliament (the usual method by which such changes are made).

2. It is thought important, both in practice and as a matter of policy, to engage

with local communities and interested parties at an early stage. The
Management Committee has therefore agreed that, prior to any steps to draw

Page 19




up a Bill, the opportunity should be taken to canvass views about the potential
shape of the proposals from users of the Open Spaces and other local interest
groups. To this end, officers have produced a public briefing paper to explain
the possible nature of the changes and to invite views. The paper is appended
to this Report. The exercise is informal in nature, as interested parties would
have a formal opportunity to put across their views on the detail of the eventual
proposals as part of the parliamentary processes applicable to private Bills.

3. The proposals as presently envisaged would be based upon three main
objectives: clarifying the general management powers available to the City
Corporation in the Open Spaces; providing greater flexibility to generate
revenue for the benefit of the Open Spaces, in a way that does not undermine
their use for public recreation and enjoyment; and providing more efficient and
effective tools to deal with crime, anti-social behaviour and nuisance in the
Open Spaces. Further details under each of these heads may be found in the
Appendix.

4. Members will note that the proposals are presently framed in general terms
relating to the City Corporation’s Open Spaces as a whole. Accordingly, not all
of the suggestions will necessarily have the same practical relevance to
Hampstead Heath. The extent to which the drafting of legislation needs to
reflect differences in the circumstances of individual Open Spaces (and in the
legal regimes under which they operate) will be considered as the proposals
are developed in detail, taking into account the views expressed in response to
the consultation.

5. Subject to the views received, it is anticipated that officers will draw up and
present to the relevant Committees detailed proposals. If agreed, a private Bill
would be prepared for deposit in Parliament in November 2015.

Appendices

e Appendix 1 - Public briefing paper: ‘Changing Legislation: A brief explanation
of proposed changes to legislation governing the City of London’s Open
Spaces’

Background Papers
e Report of the Remembrancer and the Director of Open Spaces on Open
Spaces Legislation:
- Open Spaces and City Gardens Committee, 13 October 2014
- Epping Forest and Commons Committee, 3 November 2014

- Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park Committee, 24
November 2014

Bob Warnock
Superintendent of Hampstead Heath / Open Spaces Department

T:020 7332 3322
E: bob.warnock@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 20


mailto:bob.warnock@cityoflondon.gov.uk

LONDON

Open
Spaces

Registered Charities

ﬂ.ﬁ;’h -

-
-

-

Changing
Legislation

A brief explanation of proposed £
changes to legislation governing the
City of London’s Open Spaces

The City of London
provides 14 green
spaces in and around
London for the benefit
of local communities.

Most are registered e
charities operating

at little cost to the

general public.




IMPROVING THE LEGISLATION
GOVERNING THE CITY OF LONDON
CORPORATION'’S OPEN SPACES

Introduction

The City of London Corporation owns Open
Spaces outside the City of London which
together cover almost 11,000 acres and
aftract an estimated 23 million visits every
year. Most are run as registered charities. The
City Corporation’s involvement goes back to
the 19th Century when it first joined the fight to
protect important green spaces against
encroachments by landowners, so that they
would be available for the health and
recreation of  future generations  of
Londoners.

The City Corporation’'s Open Spaces are
largely governed under special Acts of
Parliament, many of which date back to the
1870s. Among the most important of these
are the Hampstead Heath Act 1871, the City
of London (Various Powers) Act 1877, the
Corporation of London (Open Spaces) Act
1878 and the Epping Forest Acts 1878 and
1880, although further powers were obtained
from Parliament in the 1930s and 1970s. The
legislation has generally stood the test of time
and served its purpose well. However, as the
years have gone by it has become clear that
there are certain areas where the City
Corporation’s legal powers need to be
clarified and brought up to date.

The City Corporation is therefore considering
the promotion of a private Bill in Parliament,
including new provisions aimed at securing
the best possible future for its Open Spaces.
The proposals currently in mind can be
grouped under three headings:

1. Clarifying the general management
powers available to the City
Corporation in the Open Spaces.

2. Providing greater flexibility to generate
revenue for the benefit of the Open
Spaces, in a way that does not

Pag

e d

undermine their use for public
recreation and enjoyment.

3. Providing more efficient and effective
tools to deal with crime, anti-social
behaviour and nuisance in the Open
Spaces.

Further details for each of these headings are
given later in this document.

Formal consultation with interested parties on
the final proposals will be part of the
Parliamentary process. However, the City
Corporation would like to share with you at
this early stage some general ideas of what
might be included, and to hear your
thoughts. This will allow your views to be taken
info account as detailed proposals are
drawn up.

The Open Spaces which could be covered
by the proposals are:

e Ashtead Common,
e Bunhill Field!,

e Burnham Beeches,
e Coulsdon Common,
e Epping Forest,

e Farthing Downs,

e Hampstead Heath

e Highgate Wood,

e Kenley Common,

e Queen’s Park,

e Riddlesdown,

e Spring Park,

o Stoke Common,

e  West Ham Park,

e  West Wickham Common.

Differences in the existing legal regime and in
circumstances on the ground will mean that
the practical effects of any new legislation
may vary from space to space. Legislation
might also provide the opportunity to address
tfechnical issues specific to particular Open
Spaces, although these are not dealt with in
this paper.

It should also be noted that many of the rules
governing the Open Spaces are set out in

%mhill Field is not a registered charity, is located in
#gton and is managed as part of the City Gardens



byelaws rather than Acts of Parliament. The
proposals referred to in this document would
not affect the byelaws in place at each
Open Space, any changes to which would
be the subject of a separate process.

1. Clarifying the general management
powers available to the City Corporation in
the Open Spaces.

In relation to its Open Spaces, the City
Corporation occupies the dual role of
landowner (more particularly charitable
trustee) and statutory authority under the
applicable legislation. It is not always easy to
work out the precise relationship between
the City Corporation’s statutory powers and
its common-law powers as landowner.

To clarify the City of London’s management
powers and responsibilities, it would be useful
to provide in legislation a suite of powers
applicable across the Open Spaces, which
expressly define the City Corporation’s ability
to exercise certain general functions of land
management. These proposals are not
intended to lead to any significant change in
the running of the Open Spaces. Rather, they
will be directed principally at clarifying the
basis on which existing activities are
undertaken, and enabling greater
consistency of approach.

+ The management of plants, trees and
other vegetation is naturally an important
part of the City Corporation’s work in the
Open Spaces. Under much of the current
legislation, a duty is imposed to “protect”
or “preserve” the vegetation and the
“natural aspect” of the Open Spaces. The
City Corporation has always applied a
common-sense interpretation of this,
which does not prevent the carrying out
of works to control or manage plant-life
where this is part of legitimate land
management. Legislation would,
however, provide the opportunity to
clarify the situation by expressly setting out
the appropriate powers. The existing duty
to preserve the natural aspect of the
Open Spaces would be maintained.

*

Page 23

Grazing activity is carried out on some of
the Open Spaces, and the City
Corporation would like to give this a firm
basis in legislation. This would, again, be
subject to the duties to preserve the
“natural aspect” of the Open Spaces,
and also to those commoners’ rights that
are still exercised.

The City Corporation would like to have a
formal procedure for entering into
arrangements with utilities providers
concerning utilities infrastructure (such as
water pipes or telephone lines) running
through the Open Spaces. Sometimes it is
beneficial to permit this in the interests of
those living or working in and around the
Open Spaces, although any proposals are
of course carefully scrutinised to make
sure that they do not have harmful
effects. Such infrastructure is usually
underground and has no lasting effect on
the amenity of the Open Spaces.

It would also be useful to have an express
power to enter into arrangements with
local councils concerning local roads in
and around the Open Spaces.
Arrangements could cover, for instance,
the installation of cattle grids in council-
owned roads, the provision of traffic-
calming systems, measures to reduce
vehicle damage to verges or the erection
of fences besides hazardous stretches of
road.

In most of the Open Spaces, the City
Corporation already has the power to
make arrangements for external providers
to run services and facilities, for instance
cafés, refreshment kiosks and car-parks.
However, under powers set out in the
1930s, leases like these are limited to only
three years at a fime. This limitation
produces uncertainty for the providers
and naturally makes it difficult to attract
the long-term investment needed to
ensure a high standard of facility. By
removing or extending this limitation the
City Corporation could enter into longer-



term arrangements with external providers
to run cafés and other facilities. This would
bring the situation into line with normal

practice at other parks and open spaces.

(The historic three-year limit on \
confracts discourages many
potential business partners. By
extending or removing this limitation
we can encourage more investment
into facilities, and improve quality

\sfcndards. J

2. Providing greater flexibility to generate
revenue for the benefit of the Open Spaces,
in a way that does not undermine their use for
public recreation and leisure.

As a result of cuts to local and central
government spending, combined with wider
economic circumstances, the funding of
public open spaces has come under
considerable pressure in recent years. This is
expected to continue for the foreseeable
future. The City Corporation’s Open Spaces
are by no means immune from these
pressures. The need for budgetary discipline
across the City Corporation’s range of
activities means that new sources of revenue
need to be found.

While the City Corporation’s powers as
landowner might already give some ability to
raise revenue in the ways described below, it
would be more fransparent and give greater
certainty to have the powers set out clearly in
legislation, subject to defined processes and
controls.

It should be stressed that any revenue raised
from the Open Spaces will go directly to the
upkeep and management of the Open
Space concerned.

+ There are buildings and other areas within
the Open Spaces which have the
potential to provide attractive venues for
those wishing to hold social or professional
events. Examples could include weddings

training courses. Where such events could
take place without significant disruption to
the visiting public or other harm to
amenity, it is considered that they could
provide a useful source of revenue for the
Open Spaces.

Some events do already take place in
some of the Open Spaces, in reliance on
the City Corporation’s general powers as
charitable trustee. It is not always clear,
however, how these implied powers
interact with the statutory schemes which
govern the Open Spaces, and difficulties
can arise, for instance, if a small area of
land needs to be cordoned off for the
duration of such an event.

The central purpose of the Open Spaces is
to provide recreational facilities for the
public at large. Any use of that Open
Space for private events must not
undermine this principle and any
interference with public rights of access
would therefore be permitted only on an
occasional and strictly limited basis. This
will need to be stated clearly in any new

legislation.

(We already receive many requests to
use our buildings for wedding
ceremonies. This would always be
done sensitively and with

\consideraﬁon for the public. )

Views would be welcome on whether we
should infroduce a scheme of paid
licences for those wishing to use the Open
Spaces to carry on certain business
activities. Examples could include fitness
instructors and commercial dog-walkers.
The City Corporation’s provisional view is
that those who use the Open Spaces for
private profit should reasonably be
expected to make some conftribution to
the running costs of those spaces. Similar
schemes are currently in operation in
other open spaces, such as the Royal

and civil ceremonies, conferences and Page 24Parks.



+ Some of the Open Spaces contain
accommodation and other buildings
originally designed for staff, but which are
no longer required for this purpose. The
City Corporation would like to allow
private use to be made of these buildings,
through appropriate lease arrangements
whilst retaining them as the City of
London’s property.

(Our Open Spaces have many Iodges\
and offices which under current
legislation must stand empty if not
being used by staff. Renting would
provide a good source of income,
and help preserve these buildings for

\fhe future. )

+ Certain of the proposals in section 1 might
also give the opportunity to raise revenue,
such as those concerned with granting
rights for utilities and letting out cafés,
although revenue would not be the main
focus of these measures.

3. Providing more efficient and effective tools
to deal with crime, anti-social behaviour and
nuisance in the Open Spaces.

One of the biggest difficulties in managing
the Open Spaces is that of people who
abuse the advantages they offer, to the
defriment of other visitors. Problems include
littering or fly-tipping; damage to wildlife or
plants; improper use of bicycles or vehicles;
camping, barbecues or fires; dog fouling and
behaviour; and disorderly or indecent acts.

Existing byelaws are generally wide enough
to cover most of the harmful activity which
takes place. However, it is considered that
the City Corporation’s enforcement powers
are out of date and have fallen behind those
of other managing bodies in similar positions.
Legislation would provide the opportunity to
modernise these powers in order to make
enforcement more efficient and effective.

+ Legislation could provide the opportunity
to bring the maximum fines under the

Page 25

byelaws into line with the “standard
scale” which applies to equivalent
byelaws elsewhere. In most of the City
Corporation’s Open Spaces the fine is
currently fixed at a maximum of £200, an
amount which has remained unchanged
since the 1970s. Most other public open
spaces in and around Greater London
apply a “level 2" fine. This is currently £500
but is shortly to rise to £2,000 under
government proposals. There would
appear to be no good reason for this
disparity and it is proposed that “level 2"
fines should also apply to the City
Corporation’s Open Spaces. This would
provide a more effective deterrent to
those who might infringe the byelaws.

Linking with the national standard
scale of fines will help deter fly-tippers
and keep penalties in line with other
authorities.

A power could be sought to give Fixed
Penalty Notices (otherwise known as "“on-
the-spot” fines) for offences committed
under the byelaws. Currently the only
means of enforcing the byelaws is to carry
out a full prosecution in the magistrates’
court. Although effective, this is a time-
consuming and costly process, both for
the City Corporation and for the person
accused. Fixed Penalty Noftices give
offenders the option of avoiding formal
prosecution by paying a smaller fine
(usually no more than £100). This is often a
more efficient and proportionate way of
dealing with misbehaviour. The
advantages of Fixed Penalty Notices are
already well recognised in the legall
system, with legislation in recent years
making them available for an increasing
number of minor offences.

Along similar lines, the City Corporation
would like to be classed as a “litter
authority” for the Open Spaces, so that it
would be able to give Fixed Penalty
Notices for littering.



*

ﬂe City Corporation’s policing h

the Open Spaces focuses on
educating users about proper
behaviour, rather than formal
enforcement. This is not intended to
change. Fixed Penalty Notices
would, however, offer a lighter-
touch option in those cases where
misbehaviour is serious or persistent

wough to warrant formal sancﬁonj

An express power could be sought to
dispose of rubbish and other objects left in
the Open Spaces without proper
authority. Sometimes it is already clear
that the City Corporation can do this in
reliance on its general powers to manage
the Open Spaces, for instance in the case
of general litter. In some cases, however,
such as camping equipment or
unlicensed signage, the legal position is
less clear-cut. It would seem reasonable
to be able to dispose of objects which are
left in circumstances where they appear
to have been abandoned, or which are
not collected within a reasonable period.

Views would also be welcomed on
whether or not the City Corporation
should have the power to exclude
persons from the Open Spaces in cases
sufficiently serious to warrant it. The public
have aright to access the Open Spaces,
but if this right is abused in a serious or
persistent manner then it might be
thought that exclusion for a certain period
of time could be an appropriate way of
protecting the enjoyment of the law-
abiding maijority of visitors.

How to have your say:

We hope this document has demonstrated
both the need for changes to current
legislation, and the desire that these changes
are proposed first and foremost for the
benefit of the users of the Open Spaces.

It is important that the general direction of
the proposals is clear, understood, and
supported by local groups and interested
parties before the formal Parliamentary
process gets underway.

If you have comments or questions, first
please speak to representatives at your local
Open Space.

If you wish to contact someone directly
regarding the implications at Hampstead
Heath, Queens Park or Highgate Wood
please address this to:-

Bob Warnock

Superintendent - Haompstead Heath,
Highgate Wood & Queen’s Park
Heathfield House,

432 Archway Road,

London,

Né 4JH
Hampstead.heath@cityoflondon.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 7332 3322

Page 26


mailto:Hampstead.heath@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 6

Committee(s) Dated:

Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee 9 March 2015

Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park 23 March 2015
Committee
Highgate Wood Joint Consultative Committee 22 April 2015

Subject:
Update on Tree Safety Management at the North London | Public
Open Spaces Division

Report of:
Superintendent of Hampstead Heath For Information

Summary

This report provides an update on Tree Safety Management across the North
London Opens Spaces Division. In March 2014 a report was presented to the
Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee on Tree Management, and the
Committee made a request for an additional report to be presented focussing on tree
safety. This report provides information on tree risk management guidance, the tree
inspections process, tree incident reporting, tree health, and external review. In
addition, the report provides information on the current practices the Tree Team
employs to manage the tree stock across the Division, specialist training and
information gathering.

Recommendation
Members are asked to:
¢ Note this report.

Main Report

Tree Inspection process and Industry Guidelines

1. The total Divisional tree stock across Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and
Queen’s Park is approximately 25,000 trees. It would not be practicable to
inspect every single one of these trees, as there is not sufficient resource to do
this. The Health and Safety Executive advise adopting a zoning approach for
those landowners who manage a large number of trees. In 2007 a Section Minute
was released into the public domain by the HSE that prescribed using a two-tier
or two-zone system, which would simply divide those trees into high-target areas,
such as highways and close to buildings, and low-target trees growing in less-
frequented areas such as woodlands. This approach has now been adopted
widely by organisations such as the Royal Parks Agency and the National Trust,
and by the City of London. The two-zone system should be considered the
minimum, and most practitioners adopt a three- to five-zone system.

2. Part of the problem that Tree Managers face is the absence of any form of clear
industry guidance or standard. Other than the Health and Safety Executive’s
Section Minute mentioned above, there is no accepted guidance document that
establishes a standard for all to follow. In 2007 the National Tree Safety Group
(NTSG) was established to investigate the feasibility of drafting a British Standard
in Tree Risk Management. This would follow a number of other Tree

Page 27



Management British Standard (BS) documents, including BS:5837 and BS:3998
which deal with trees and development and with arboricultural operations
respectively. The NTSG spent considerable time and effort in producing a draft
standard known as BS:8516, and a specialist separate BS group was set up to
draft a document that was sent out for consultation in 2008. The document was
widely commented on but met with extensive criticism and ended up being
dropped.

3. Fortunately the NTSG continued as a group and produced instead a guidance
document ‘Common Sense Risk Management of Trees’, which following public
consultation was released in December 2011. This publication was widely
praised by the industry, and also sanctioned by the HSE. Published by the
Forestry Commission, the document has now been adopted by many organis-
ations across the Tree Management Sector. In June 2014 the City of London
produced its own Tree Safety Policy, which refers directly to the NTSG guidance.
This document was adopted by the Open Spaces Committee in June 2014. The
NTSG guidance is founded on five key principles:

Trees provide a wide variety of benefits to Society.

Trees are living organisms that naturally lose branches or fall.

The overall risk to human safety is extremely low.

Tree owners have a legal duty of care.

Tree owners should take a balanced and proportionate approach to Tree
Safety Management.

4. The NTSG guidance document is made up of five chapters, with key sections on
the risks from trees, legal requirements, reasonable and balanced tree
management, and how to apply the guidance. The document is aimed at all
levels of tree ownership, from large organisations right down to small landowners.

Tree risk quantified

5. The key message to convey to all our visitors and staff is that the risk posed by
trees shedding branches or collapsing is very low. The Health and Safety
Executive website publishes statistics on injuries and fatalities attributable to
trees, in both the Forestry and Arboricultural sectors. The generally accepted
average figure for related deaths remains at six occurrences per year, although
this does fluctuate. It is significant that the number of fatalities of arboricultural
workers is also around six occurrences every year, which gives an indication of
the level of focus on tree management.

6. The HSE suggest a threshold of risk management of 1:10,000, where any risk
above this level is regarded as unacceptable and must be addressed. The
‘Tolerable Risk’ region extends from 1:10,000 to 1:1,000,000. The risk from trees
is calculated to 1:10,000,000 and is therefore considered to be very low. This
calculation was carried out by the Centre for Decision Analysis and Risk
Management at Middlesex University, who were commissioned by the NTSG.

Tree safety and the Law

7. Under both the civil law and criminal law, an owner of land on which a tree stands
has responsibilities for the Health pa%éa@/ of those on or near the land and



has potential liabilities arising from the falling of a tree or branch. The civil law
gives rise to duties and potential liabilities to pay damages in the event of a
breach of those duties. The criminal law gives rise to the risk of prosecution in
the event of an infringement of the relevant provisions.

The civil law

8.

10.

11.

12.

Common law: The owner of the land on which a tree stands, together with any
party who has control over the tree’s management, owes a duty of care at
common law to all people who might be injured by the tree. The duty of care is to
take reasonable care to avoid acts or omissions that cause a reasonably
foreseeable risk of injury to persons or property. If a person is injured by a
falling/fallen tree or branch, potential causes of action arise against the tree
owner in negligence for a breach of the duty of care, and/or in nuisance (where
the tree or branch falls on neighbouring land). The courts have endeavoured to
provide a definition of what amounts to reasonable care in the context of tree
safety, and have stated that the standard of care is that of the reasonable and
prudent landowner. The tree owner is not, however, expected to guarantee that
the tree is safe.

Occupiers Liability Act 1957: This imposes a statutory duty of care on an occupier
of premises to take such care as in all the circumstances of the case is
reasonable to see that the visitor will be reasonably safe in using the premises for
the purposes for which he is invited or permitted by the occupier to be there. The
duty of care under the Act is effectively the same as that at common law in
respect of the torts of negligence or nuisance.

Occupiers Liability Act 1984: This provides for an occupier’s liability to people
other than visitors, in particular trespassers. However no duty will arise under
this Act in respect of risk resulting from any natural feature of the landscape
(which will include a tree) providing that the occupier does not intentionally or
recklessly create the risk.

Highways Act 1980: Under section 154(2) of the Act a highway authority has the
power to require trees growing on land adjacent to the highway that are dead,
diseased, damaged or insecurely rooted to be removed by those responsible for
the trees and, in default of removal, to take action itself to have the trees
removed. This legislation is relevant to all three sites within the Division, as
between them they have responsibility for 10 kilometres of roadside trees,
Hampstead Heath being the main site with 8 kilometres. The roadside trees
located around and across the Heath represent the largest number at 1,300 and
these are inspected annually.

Some Regulations under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 may also
give rise to liability under the civil law as well as under the criminal law.

The criminal law

13.Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974: Sections 2 and 3 of the Act place a duty

on employers to ensure, so far as is reasonably practicable, that in the course of
conducting their undertaking, employees and members of the public are not put
at risk. The acts of felling or lopping a tree clearly falls within the scope of this
duty. It is also likely that the growing and management of trees on land falls

within the scope of the duty where — as with the City’s management of the Open
P y Page 519 y g p



14.

Spaces — such operations fall within the employer’s undertaking. The proviso “so
far as is reasonably practicable” requires an employer to address the practical
and proportionate precautions which can be taken to reduce a risk. The courts
have indicated that this requires a computation to be made by the employer in
which the amount of risk is placed on one scale and the sacrifice involved in the
measures necessary for averting the risk, whether in terms of money, time or
trouble, or the benefits of conducting the activity, are placed in the other.

Management of Health and Safety at Work Regqulations 1999: Regulation 3
requires every employer to make a suitable and sufficient assessment of the risks
to the Health and Safety of his employees whilst at work, and to other persons
arising out of or in connection with the conduct by him of his undertaking. This
necessarily requires an employer to undertake a risk assessment of the tree
stock on the land which forms part of the undertaking, and to operate an
inspection system which focuses available resources on tree stock in high-use,
high-target areas. The HSE Section Minute referred to above suggests a zoning
process as the most practicable method of complying with this legal duty.

Tree Risk management at Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood, and Queen’s
Park.

15.

16.

17.

The three sites that make up the North London Open Spaces Division have
exercised a risk zoning process since 2006. This has proved very effective and
allows the tree inspection process to be undertaken internally, using the skills and
experience of arboricultural staff, all of whom have the LANTRA Professional
Tree Inspection Qualification. This is recognised nationally as the required level
for those carrying out tree inspections as a regular part of their work, and
assessing trees in areas of high use.

In order to make the recording of the inspection process easier, we use a tree
management database called Arbortrack, widely used by other organisations and
landowners, including other City of London Open Spaces. Of the 25,000 trees
across the Division, 7,280 are recorded on Arbortrack, which equates to just
under 30% of the total estimated tree stock. The majority of these trees are within
the high-risk zone containing roads, facilities and surrounding property.

In 2012 the zoning system was modified following advice from a Tree Risk
Management Consultant, who also carries out annual tree management audits
for the Division. This recommendation followed various discussions about the
efficacy and precision of the system that was used at the time, and the lengthy
process of inspecting every single tree and recording findings. The proposal was
to carry out the annual inspection as a ‘walk over’ process using the Visual Tree
Assessment (VTA) protocol, and only recording individual trees that required
works. The high, medium, and low zoning system would be retained but the
individual zones would themselves be categorised according to perceived risk.
This can be mostly easily explained by taking the example of highways and traffic
flows, where classification depends on whether the road is a busy arterial road
with high numbers of vehicles or mainly used for access only. By ‘sequencing’
each risk category, it was possible to identify more effectively where the
inspection operation could be focused.

Page 30



HAMPSTEAD HEATH & QUEENS PARK - RISK SEQUENCING AREAS
Date of Who | Duration | Number [Tree workschstweather
Group Sub Group Target Type Target Use Area & description Priority No Inspection (people hrs)| of trees | required |event walk over
[Criena) 12-Dec 15-Jan
1 Al Major external road Very high volume vehicular traffic ~ North End Way (both sides) - A road 20 07/02/2014| DH/NH| 3 hrs 98 5 Y Y
1 A2 Over ground train Line Frequent rail passage Gospel Train Line (including play facilities) 20 11/02/2014[ CD/NH | 1.5 mins 46 2 Y Y
1 A3 Major external road Very high volume vehicular traffic Spaniards Road (both sides & Hampstead Lane orchard section) - B road 20 06/03/2014 | CD/NH | 4.5 hrs 224 4 Y Y
1 B1 Major external road  High to moderate volume vehicular traffic East Heath Road (incl voH road, & Whitestone gdn) - Classified unnumbered road 19 10/04/2014|DH/NH 213 Y Y
1 B2 Major external road  High to moderate volume vehicular traffic Southend Green (inc Keats House, Willow road & Heathside) - Classified unnumbe: 19 12/03/2014 | CD/NH 2 hrs 75 30 Y Y
1 B3 Major external road  High to moderate volume vehicular traffic Highghate Road - Classified unnumbered road 19 15/04/2014| NH 30 mins 27 Y Y
1 Cc1 Major external road Moderate volume vehicular traffic Queens Park (external road) - Classified unnumbered & B road 18 23/06/2014|CD/DH 4hrs 194 9 Y Y
1 cz2 Major external road Moderate volume vehicular traffic West Heath Road (including Branch Hill & Judges Walk) 18 30/06/2014| DH 1.5hrs 138 3 Y Y
1 3 Major external road Moderate volume vehicular traffic Ham pstead Way/Wildwood Road Classified unnumbered road 18 03/07/2014 [DH/CD/P] 4.5hrs. 225 4 Y Y
1 ca Major external road Moderate volume vehicular traffic ~ West Heath Avenue - Classified unnumbered road links to A road 18 20/06/2014| DH/IM 1hr 15 Y Y
1 DL Major external road _Moderate to low volume vehicular traffic _Millfield Lane - Classified unnumbered road links to B road 17 04/07/2014] CD 1hr 60 Y Y
2 A Focus/formal areas High public invited access area Dams - Water safety management area 16 MS 4 hrs 76 Y Y
2 Bl Focus/formal areas High public invited access area Queens Park - High local residency 15 15/09/2014 |CD/MS|  5hrs 374 13 Y Y
2 B2 Focus/formal areas High public invited access area Golders Hill Park - Moderate - high local residency 15 12/11/2014[oHicomy  6hrs 1499 13 Y Y
2 [} Focus/formal areas High public invited access area Play & education areas - inc PH, EH, Vale, GH, Ext & KW 14 18/11/2014|CcoMs 6hrs 105 9 Y Y
2 D Focus/formal areas High public invited access area Swimming Ponds - Amenity usage 13 08/11/2014|co/mMs 6hrs 3 Y Y
M edium
3 Al Paths/tracks High to moderate pedestrian use Parliament Hill below Kyte Hill - Surfaced footpath/pavement 12 26/-1/2015 |orcoanms | 2.5hrs ? 9 Y Y
3 A2 Property boundary High to moderate pedestrian use Various (see map) 12 23/12/2014] AN_| Shrs ? 3 Y Y
3 A3 Paths/tracks High to moderate pedestrian use Cycle Tracks - Surfaced footpath/pavement 12 06/02/2015|cp ANMS ? Y Y
3 B Paths/tracks Moderate to high pedestrian use Ham pstead Gate - Chubb path - South Meadow tarmac path 1 14/01/2015|MS/AN| _ 3hrs Y Y
3 Paths/tracks Moderate to high pedestrian use Hill Garden & outside the main entrance- Surfaced footpath/pavement 10 15/12/2014|pH/cDiAl 3hrs 57 1 Y Y
3 D Paths/tracks Moderate to high pedestrian use Lime Avenue - Surfaced footpath/pavement 9 22/12/2014f AN 1hr 1 Y Y
3 E Paths/tracks Moderate to high pedestrian use West Heath Main paths - Surfaced footpath/pavement 8 Y Y
3 F Paths/tracks Moderate to high pedestrian use Extension internal paths - Surfaced footpath/pavement 7 Y Y
3 G Paths/tracks Moderate to high pedestrian use Pond Beat - Surfaced footpath/pavement 6 Y Y
3 HL Paths/tracks Moderate pedestrian use Athlone garden - Surfaced footpath/pavement 5 Y Y
3 H2 Paths/tracks Moderate pedestrian use Sandy heath internal paths - Surfaced footpath/pavement 5 Y Y
Low 1
4 A Bridal Paths Moderate to low horse & pedestrian use Horse Rides Ext, Sandy, West Heath Soutl - Bridal path 4
4 Bl Paths/tracks Moderate to low pedestrian use Vale foot paths - Broad trodden track, pedestrian use 3
4 B2 Paths/tracks Moderate to low pedestrian use Cohens Field - Broad trodden track, pedestrian use 3
4 € Desire paths Moderate to low use Various Heath wide desire paths - Narrow single file trodden footpath 2
Low 2]
5 A edifenced off areas Low ian use. Bird sanctuaries & fenced ponds - Only i enjoy access 1 [ |
Group 1 Major roads & rail line High Use targets Areas Hrs Trees
Key |Group 2 Formal areas out of 31
Group 3 Paths & well used tracks Medium [ Medium Use targets 22 3264 |is of ... 26/01/2015|
Group 4 Bridal ways & significant desire lines Low 1 Low Use targets
Group 5 Fenced off area Low 2

Figure 1: Tree inspection schedule for 2014

18.The Risk Sequencing System (RSS) has been very successful, allowing the

Team to inspect trees more effectively and achieve higher inspection numbers.
The success of the system is highly dependent on the competence and training
of the inspector. The trees that are being re-inspected are well known to the
Inspection Team, and are each already recorded with their individual history on
the Arbortrack database. Trees that require work are recorded and then allocated
a priority on a separate works list, which is regularly updated by the Tree
Management Officer. Tree inspection progress is reviewed at regular meetings
between the Tree Manager and the Tree Management Officer. All tree incidents
are recorded on a separate database that has been maintained since 2008.

Specialist tree inspection work

19.Members of the Tree Team have developed their skills and experience in

carrying out detailed tree assessment over the past six years, and can now
employ a variety of technical investigatory procedures that can determine
structural integrity and the extent of decay in older or damaged trees. They can
employ a micro drilling device called a Resistograph, which provides an
instantaneous visual display of the internal structure of the branch or stem being
assessed. This device allows the Team to determine the ‘residual wall’ strength
of the tree and make decisions on whether the tree requires a crown reduction or
other suitable management. The acceptable rule of 30% of the known radius of
the tree’s main stem is considered to be the optimum wall thickness, but there
are exceptions to this guidance, depending on age and species.

Page 31



27
s

-

Figure 2: Resitograph being used to test for internal decay

20.The Tree Team has also started to carry out more root inspection work when

possible, often on trees where there are evident fruiting fungal bodies, or where
the root zone is compacted. The Team uses a compressor-powered air lance or
air spade to carry out the excavation work, which prevents damage to the larger,
more significant lateral and supportive roots. This equipment has been used to
great effect on a number of trees where root damage has been suspected and
allowed construction design to be altered to avoid further damage. Air spading
has proven very effective at reducing compaction around veteran trees on the
busier, more frequented areas of Hampstead Heath. The image below is from a
recent investigation in Highgate Wood on one of the larger oaks near Muswell Hill
Road. The tree was previously damaged in the 1987 storm and it was discovered
that the main stem has a significant crack that has now occluded over but can still
be detected using the Resistograph.

= e,
Figure 3: Oak tree root investigation at Highgate Wood

Page 32




Other technical skills including lifting and lowering operations.

tyiaht

Figure 4: Veteran oak crown reduction Figure 5: Dismantling of a field bbunda?y oak

21.Figures 4 and 5 above show lifting and lowering operations undertaken by the
Tree Team over the past twelve months. Figure 4 involved a light crown reduction
on a veteran oak at the bottom of the Tumulus Field, using the Highgate Wood
hydraulic work platform. Figure 5 shows the Team working on an old field
boundary oak in Golders Hill Park, which required dismantling using a ‘spider’
crane. The Team has started to use both types of equipment with greater
frequency, developing their skills and expertise on technically challenging
operations that would have previously required bringing in external contractors.

22.The significance of this changing approach to tree management is reflected more
widely within the industry, with a greater emphasis on saving trees that would
have previously simply been removed. Over the past ten to fifteen years, there
has been an ‘awakening’ in the arboricultural world, with increased scientific
understanding of the biomechanical properties of trees and their biology, and
equally importantly how they interact with their surrounding environment.
Arboriculturists can now employ an in-depth understanding of the ‘body language’
of trees, their complex relationship with the soil environment and other species,
notably fungi. Equipped with this greater understanding of how trees grow and
adapt to a suite of varying factors, the tree inspector can make more-informed
decisions on how trees can be safely managed without major interventions.

Pest and Disease threats and the impact on tree safety

23.The Tree Team actively inspects populations of oak, London plane, ash and
horse chestnuts for the presence of Oak Processionary Moth, Massaria, ash
dieback, and horse chestnut bleeding canker. Records are kept of findings and
then transferred to a series of maps that plot the extent of each respective
disease. Trees that are sited in the high and medium zones are numerically
prioritised and are subject to annual walk-over inspection by the Tree Team.

Page 33



Massaria of Plane remains a significant operational focus for the Tree Team, with
established infection sites at South End Green and Queen’s Park.

S

Z:_Blanch 1 2 3 5.\ \ 4 \ \
croWn 1 ! 1 .
/ /
_+ Zone o 1 n Zone (A-S5)

h | OW
For each branch listed n the table on Page 1, note tne &
Figure 6: Branches with Massaria

24.Both the Divisional Tree Manager and the Tree Officer are involved with the
London Tree Officers Association (LTOA) in the management of tree disease.
The Tree Manager is a member of the LTOA'’s Biosecurity Working Party, which
meets quarterly, and the Tree Officer has been significantly involved in the
LTOA’s guidance on managing Massaria. The importance of working with other
organisations such as the Arboricultural Association and the Forestry
Commission is critical in the ongoing control of tree disease.

25.The Tree Team works closely with partners in the Forestry Commission to track
male Oak Processionary Moths (OPM), using pheromone traps across the site
which feeds back into a London-wide mapping strategy. Last year 27 male moths
were discovered in the traps across the Division. As yet, there have been no egg-
carrying females discovered but there are known nests at the Zoo in Regent’s
Park, just over two kilometres to the south of the Heath. There have also been
nests found at an Open Space in the Borough of Brent, which is within two
kilometres of Queen’s Park. This year there has been an additional winter survey
carried out which has provided accurate information on the insect’'s current
distribution in the London area. A number of further nests have been discovered
in Regent’s Park which is significant for the Heath. One of the potential concerns
about the caterpillar when it is discovered on site is the impact this will have on
the Tree Team’s ability to work on the trees that have been colonised. The arrival
of OPM will impact not only on public access and safety but also on existing tree
management operations, and will need to be carefully considered.

Page 34



Pg_ &® Newham

\% 4
% Bmbridge
‘\l ’ o LR — |

CEr— Cuter et of 3843 ki

0 2 e . Esr HERE, Delorme, Mapmyindla; © OpénStreetMap contributofs, and the GIS user communizy

Figure 7: Oak Processionary Moth spread 2014

Increased frequency of extreme weather events

26.

27.

The St Jude’s Storm in October 2013 caused a huge increase in the tree incident
records at both Hampstead Heath and Highgate Wood. The final total for 2013
was over 300 recorded incidents, a fourfold increase on the annual average. The
impact of this was that the Tree Team’s operational work was severely disrupted
and other teams had to provide support for the process of making the many
damaged trees safe and clearing debris. A storm of this magnitude is
commonplace in other parts of the world but in the UK it is relatively rare, though
this trend is changing. This winter we have experienced a number of strong
westerly weather systems, bringing high winds and heavy rain, but fortunately the
predictions from the Meteorological Office proved to be incorrect and the damage
this year has so far been very low.

In Highgate Wood, Golders Hill Park and Queen’s Park, an early warning system
has been introduced, using the Meteorological Office’s messaging service.
Storm warnings are generally issued three to four days beforehand, and this
allows Management to issue instructions to staff to install signage warning of a
possible site closure due to high winds. The system has been employed twice
over the past three months but closures were not necessary, due to lower than
predicted wind speeds.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

28.

Tree management contributes to producing a Clean, Pleasant and Attractive City
(Objective CPAC4) and to Conserve and Protect Biodiversity (Goal 15) in the
Community Strategy. It will also help fulfil the Department’s Strategic Goals and
Objectives: No. 2. To adopt sustainable and sensitive working practices, promote
biodiversity and protect the Open Spaces for the enjoyment of future generations,
and No. 5. To ensure that the profile of the Open Spaces is further recognised

Page 35



through working in partnership with others to promote our sites and through
influencing policies at a local, regional and national level.

Implications

29.There are no anticipated financial implications resulting from this report.
30.The legal implications are contained within the body of this report.
Conclusion

31.The Tree Safety Management process at Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood,
and Queen’s Park has developed in line with industry changes and a new, more
scientifically based approach to managing trees. This new approach still has to
operate within the parameters of the relevant legal requirements and Health and
Safety considerations. The increasing frequency of severe weather events and
the added requirement to manage the impact of tree disease is creating
challenges for the Tree Management Team. Developing knowledge and
technology, and the sharing of expertise and support from other organisations
involved in the sector, will be critical in continuing to deliver a high-quality Tree
Safety Management service.

Appendices

e Appendix 1 — ‘Managing Tree Safety’ City of London Open Spaces
Department June 2014

Background Papers
e National Tree Safety Group guidance document ‘Common Sense Risk

Management of Trees’. Available to view or download from:
http://www.forestry.gov.uk/publications.

Jonathan Meares
Highgate Wood, Conservation, Trees and Sustainability Manager / Open Spaces
Department

T: 020 7332 3322
E: jonathan.meares@-cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 36


http://www.forestry.gov.uk/publications
mailto:jonathan.meares@cityoflondon.gov.uk

CoL OPEN SPACES DEPARTMENT POLICY:

MANAGING TREE SAFETY

1. Policy Introduction and Context:

1.1 Each Division, for its geographic area of responsibility where it would be deemed as the occupier
as defined by the Occupiers’ Liabilities Acts, must have a risk limitation strategy for trees based upon
the 5 key principles identified by the National Tree Safety Group in Common Sense Management of
Trees (NTSG 2011) endorsed by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE).

The 5 key principles

e trees provide a wide variety of benefits to society (including supporting significant biodiversity)
e trees are living organisms that naturally lose branches or fall

¢ the overall risk to human safety is extremely low

e tree owners have a legal duty of care

e tree safety management should be balanced & proportionate to risk/benefit.

1.2 As part of each Divisional Strategy there must be a:

¢ clear zoning system

¢ verifiable tree hazard inspection regime
¢ balanced, proportionate risk assessment
¢ clear risk management process.

1.3 The Tolerability of Risk (ToR) Framework set out in Figure 1 below will be the basis for each
Divisional strategy. Therefore, in deciding upon actions, the evaluation of what is reasonable and
proportionate intervention must be based upon a balance between the benefits and potential for harm.
The risk of being killed by a falling branch or tree is extremely low according to the HSE (Figure 1).

Figure 1: Tolerability of Risk Framework

IMMEDIATE ACTION

UNACCEPTABLE RISK — not within schedul

Managed through an inspections

schedule with frequency of visits and
priorities determined by target zone (s€
section 2) with the risks managed

TOLERABLE RISK -
<1:10,000

‘as low as reasonably practicable’
-ALARP -

BROADLY ACCEPTABLE RISK -
= 1: 1,000,000

Thegeneral average annual level of
risk of death from falling treesliesin
thisregion (NTSG 2011)

No specific allocation of resources.
Opportunistic, informal or reactive
inspections (e.g. see section 3.2 below|

Page 37 Page



1.4 In general, NTSG 2011 states that “the courts appear to indicate that the standard of inspection is
proportional to the size of and resources available (in terms of expertise) to the landowner”. In
determining the resources the level of risk, which is very low (Fig. 1), is also key and a “reasonable
and prudent” approach is required in this context.

1.5 The risk management process and tree hazard inspections should not lead to a loss of character
or species diversity within Open Spaces. It should ensure that a balance is maintained between
nature and landscape conservation, public access, recreation and enjoyment, and risks to safety
posed by trees.

1.6 Except where there is an imminent danger to life, before work is undertaken on any tree an
assessment of its use by bats (and other protected species) as well as of the general requirements of
any statutory wildlife protection of the site (e.g. SSSI/SAC) must be undertaken and advice sought
from relevant authorities to prevent damage to those species or habitats. For bats a Bat Risk
Assessment form should be completed to provide written evidence of procedure and to record the
rationale for subsequent actions.

1.7 In order to undertake a tree risk assessment the two separate factors of Risk and Hazard must be
addressed:

* Risk is an estimate of the likelihood and severity of an adverse event occurring. The
NTSG (2011) principles upon which this policy is based recognise that overall the risk to
human safety from trees is extremely low (see Figure 1 above). Risk is related to the location
of the tree. It reflects the intensity of use of the immediate surroundings of the tree and the
proximity of the tree to buildings or other structures. The intensity of use by the public, staff,
volunteers and contractors within Open Spaces is not evenly distributed and, therefore, levels
of risk may vary across a site. This fact must be recognised in an appropriate, site-specific
tree inspection zoning system.

* Hazard: Trees are subject to decline, physical damage and infection. As trees
deteriorate they are increasingly likely to shed limbs or fall in strong winds and the potential to
cause harm increases. Remedial action is only necessary when there is clearly a significant
risk to life or property. This might mean either removing part of the tree that is creating the
hazard or reducing the level of public access in the vicinity or both.

2. Divisional Zoning System
2.1 The zone designation below will determine the priority and regularity of proactive inspections.

2.2 Divisional resources must be directed to the areas in proportion to the potential for harm to
people and property. As such, zones must be related to identifiable, potential “targets”, both physical
targets such as property and targets based on level of usage of an area by people. Both the nature
and frequency of use of the “target” by people need to be taken into account. Where no data on levels
or patterns of use are directly available for an area, the level of use by people should be a reasonable
estimate based on local knowledge of the area and its particular features. A reasonable outcome of
the zoning process may be the decision that some areas require no proactive inspections.

2.3 Decisions on zones and the definition of each zone need to be recorded and be accessible for
inspection. Zoning systems at each Divisional area of responsibility should be reviewed periodically in
order to take account of significant changes to site use, the uses of adjoining land or modifications to
site boundaries.

2.4 Zoning will be achieved by each Division by designating each area of land under its responsibility
into a minimum of three Use Levels requiring some level of proactive inspections based on the
concepts of risk and hazard outlined above.

. High Use targets - coloured red on the tree inspection map.
. - coloured on the tree inspection map.
. Low Use targets - coloured green on the tree inspection map.

Page 38 Page



2.5 Within the Open Spaces the variety of sites and situations, rural and urban, is very large and
zoning needs to reflect local knowledge and divisional differences. It should be recognised that within
each of the target zones, there may be a need to prioritize further based on availability of resources.

2.6 Areas deemed as of broadly acceptable risk (see Figure 1 above) because of low use and low
target levels would require zoning so that the demarcation is clear but may not require proactive
inspections. These will be demarcated but left uncoloured on the zone map.

3. Inspection regimes
3.1 Proactive Inspection Regime and Competence Level for Inspectors

3.1.1 The identified coloured zones above must each have a proactive, formal inspection regime
defined and carried out at a frequency based on the level of use of the target. A competent Inspector
will assess the tree. For all Open Spaces Department formal inspections, tree inspectors will be
trained to LANTRA Professional Level, have passed the Professional Tree Inspection (PTI) course
and possess demonstrable, recent experience of tree risk assessment work.

3.1.2 Defects on the trees will be recorded in order to assess the potential hazard and consider the
risk posed by the defect. Given that the risk to human safety from trees is, in general, very low the
assessment of defects needs to bear this in mind. However, where i) the risk to a target is considered
high (see Figure 1 above); ii) the tree is of importance for nature conservation or has landscape value
and iii) the nature of the hazard posed by the defect is uncertain (e.g. level of internal decay) more
detailed assessments may be carried out before a decision on the type of action required is taken.

3.1.3 During walk-by inspections within a surveyed zone, trees with no obvious defects, that appeared
sound and that required no further level of inspection would not need to be recorded. A record of the
visit to that zone by the inspector would be all that would be required. However, any trees subject to
more detailed individual inspection, whether requiring subsequent action or not, would require a
record. Once the work has been completed on these recorded trees, if they are retained rather than
felled they do not necessarily require future recording unless a subsequent survey flags them up
again as having obvious new defects requiring another inspection. However, in High Use Target
zones, should time and resources allow, site managers may wish to continue individual inspection
regimes once started. However, this is not a requirement of this policy and will be dependent on the
characteristics of the trees involved and the nature of the site and its zones. The purpose of the
annual inspection is to pick out obvious problems and prioritize them, not to repeat recording.

3.1.4 All records must be readily accessible to relevant staff and will be kept indefinitely. This will be
especially important for those trees located next to Highways and other high use target zones.

3.1.5 Any tree works that are required must be prioritized according to risk, taking account of location
(target level) and hazard, and there must be a recommended period for the work to be carried out.
The range of this period might be from immediate action up to a recommendation for work within 12
months.

3.2 Reactive Inspections

3.2.1 Sites must have a local emergency plan that details the actions to be taken in the event of
severe weather conditions or events, such as storms, flooding, drought and fire. This emergency plan
would be additional to, over and above, the regular proactive inspection regime. There also may be
the need for other reactive inspections over and above the proactive inspection regime where a new
target is created or develops rapidly (e.g. an unplanned public event).

3.2.2 Therefore, in either enacting an emergency plan or responding to a new and changing situation,
reactive inspections of trees should be focused on identifying serious and present dangers (NTSG
2011). Such inspections may be carried out by any person able to identify such threats and with a
good local knowledge of the site. Such persons do not need to be qualified specifically for tree
inspections. These reactive inspections do not constitute detailed inspections, as defined by NTSG
2011. However, follow-up detailed inspections of identified trees by PTI-qualified inspectors may be
required in order to prioritize remedial action if large amounts of work are involved.

Page 39 Page



3.2.3 For reactive inspections following weather events, including drive-by checks, the top priority is
to identify the areas of worst damage and then to prioritize the inspections in order of zonal priority but
this may include areas not normally proactively inspected, if deemed necessary, because of new
serious and present dangers created by the event or reported by others on the site.

4. Risk assessments and determining priorities

4.1 Risk assessments may be qualitative or quantitative to suit the needs and resources of each
Division and each site. For larger, more complex sites with many targets and many trees, quantitative
assessments, such as provided by a Target Risk Index (TRI), should be considered as an option to
help stratify priorities and determine the order and speed with which remedial action is taken.

4.2 If a quantitative system is chosen it should be based on target sequencing to generate a Target
Risk Index (TRI). Resource allocation should take an As-Low-As-Reasonably-Practicable (ALARP)
approach as described in the NTSG guidance (2011 and see Figure 1 above).

4.3 A priority matrix should be formulated based on the hazard rating: - Tolerability of Risk (ToR) (see
Figure 1 above) and the Target Risk Index (TRI). This matrix would then enable cost-effective
decisions to be made with clear justifications.

What Documentation Should be Kept?

Up-to-date tree zoning maps, zoning rationale and reviews

Records of tree inspection visits/timesheets — signed and dated by inspector.

Individual tree management recommendations and actions, preferably also on a computer
GIS database (e.g. Arbortrack, EzyTreev) for larger sites

Records of more detailed individual tree investigations if undertaken — (e.g. Picus tomography
records of internal decay)

Records and details of reactive inspections following severe weather events and any site
closure programme.

Records of any tree disease survey or other tree health monitoring activities.
Records of training and copies of certificates for all relevant members of staff.
Records of contractors and their competency checks.

Summary of Open Spaces Policy for Managing Trees

Each Division must have tree safety management guidelines comprising of tree zone map(s),
tree inspection regime, and tree risk assessment & management procedure.

Deal with immediate threats to public safety as a priority.
Keep records of the assessment of trees and the remedial actions taken.

A competent person will undertake inspections of trees to assess the risks they pose. Keep
records of tree safety training and monitor these to ensure training and certificates renewed.

Inspect areas of high use levels as soon as is reasonably practicable and within five days of
any storm event, and record the appropriate measures taken to make the site safe.

Monitor the weather forecasts and print off the relevant information and display appropriately.

Monitor the near miss records as per the tree safety management system and transfer
records to tree safety recording forms/database.

Undertake appropriate surveys of trees for environmental factors that are hazardous to
human health e.g. Oak Processionary Moth. Take appropriate action and record the activity.

Page 40 Page



Agenda Item 7

Committee(s) Dated:
Highgate Wood Joint Consultative Committee 22 April 2015
Subject: Public

Cycling in Highgate Wood

Report of: For Decision
Superintendent of Hampstead Heath

Summary

This report provides information for the Highgate Wood Joint Consultative
Committee to make a recommendation to the Hampstead Heath, Highgate
Wood and Queen’s Park Committee on whether the cycling ban in Highgate
Wood should be upheld. A member of the public, and a cyclist, has requested
that the prohibition of cycling in Highgate Wood be lifted based on the safer
cycling environment that Highgate Wood offers and the national and local
policies on encouraging and supporting cycling and its health benefits. This
report will provide evidence for both lifting and upholding the cycling ban in the
light of recent information, and the increasing popularity and political support for
sustainable transport.

Recommendations
Members are asked to:

¢ Note the report, and make recommendations to the Hampstead Heath,
Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park Committee that the Officers will raise
the issue of improving cycling safety and provision along the Muswell Hill
Road with the London Borough of Haringey.

e Officers also recommend that Byelaw 10 be maintained and enforced but
that children under the age of 12 be allowed to ride a bicycle under close
supervision.

Main Report

The growing popularity and benefits of cycling

1. There has been a massive increase in cycling in London over the last 15
years; a report issued by Transport for London in 2011 reported a 150% rise
in cycling in the 10 year period between 2000 and 2010, and there has been a
corresponding campaign at both governmental and local authority level to
encourage Londoners to get out of their cars and cycle instead. The
advantages of cycling are many; personal well-being, economical, zero
emissions, and low impact on both the natural environment and the built
infrastructure. The only real disadvantage is that cyclists have to share the
road network with cars and commercial traffic and that is inherently
dangerous.

Page 41



The road safety issue for cycling has become a major political issue, following
a spate of fatalities in 2013 in central London and a call for improved provision
for cycling on the road network. There is now a widely publicised campaign
and public consultation leading up the proposed Cycle Superhighway Project
that will provide a new cycle route through central London connecting east to
west; the cyclists answer to the Cross Rail Project. The current Mayor and
the Greater London Authority are backing this ambitious Project and launched
the ‘Vision for Cycling’ in March 2013. Various Local Authorities have their
own Cycling promotion policies and offer local authority employees’
preferential loan schemes to purchase bicycles for travelling to work.

City of London’s support of cycling

3.

The City is also playing a central part in the Cycle Superhighway Project
already mentioned above; with significant sections of the cycle route passing
through the City and the additional north south route also transecting the
Square Mile. New contra flows cycle lanes are being built in congested areas
and the City is working with Transport for London on delivering part of the
‘Quiet Ways’ Project, another scheme to divert cyclists off busy traffic routes
onto safer routes. The City of London also promotes cycling with various
schemes including charitable ride events; the Lord Mayor took part in a 100
kilometre charity ride to Oxford in June 2013. The City of London Corporation
offers a bicycle loan scheme at very favourable rates to all its employees.

At many of the City of London’s Open Spaces cycling is actively encouraged
including Hampstead Heath and Epping Forest; the Heath has a total of just
over four kilometres of designated cycle paths which are shared with
pedestrians. Epping Forest offers an extensive network of cycle routes and
also a bicycle hire scheme. City of London Open Spaces staff are
increasingly using bicycles in the course of their patrolling and Rangering
duties, including electric bikes to take some of the pain out of the hilly
sections.

The Cycling ban in Highgate Wood.

5.

Cycling has been prohibited in Highgate Wood for many years, and the ban is
enacted in Bye Law Number 10, which also prohibits motor cycles, tricycles,
wheel barrows, and motorised vehicles. The Bye Laws were last revised in
1997.

There are a number of reasons for the cycle ban in the Wood. First and
foremost it is the informed belief of the staff and management that allowing
cyclists into the Wood will compromise the safety of pedestrians and
especially young children, and the elderly, both of whom make up a large
proportion of the visitor profile for the site. Prior to the installation of the
bicycle barriers in 2006/7 there were regular conflict situations between
pedestrians and cyclists. The earlier barriers were largely ineffective and
many cyclists were able to use the commuter route between Onslow and
Gypsy Gates as an alternative to using Muswell Hill Road.

Since the installation of the barriers the number of cyclists gaining access has
fallen considerably and the commuter route from both Onslow Gate and
Cranley Gate to the north down to Gypsy Gate is now much safer for
pedestrians especially at busy qbaggteftgeriods and weekends.



Highgate Wood does make a concession for children under the age of 12 to
cycle in the Wood, recognising that the vehicle free pathways and the lack of
obstructions make for a relatively safe environment to learn how to ride.

The additional concern is that with Highgate Wood visitor numbers
approaching the 900,000 mark, and increasing annually, introducing cycling is
simply going to increase the already significant issue of visitor pressure on the
woodland environment. Incrementally the understory and herb layer of the
woodland is being eroded and degraded simply by the sheer numbers of
visitors and there is a real concern that the site has reached a critical state,
where woodland regeneration will become increasingly difficult to achieve.

The case for allowing cycling in Highgate Wood

10.

11.

12.

Other
13.

14.

The representation calling for the lifting of the cycling ban in Highgate Wood
makes the point that there is open access to cyclists in a number of Open
Spaces in the London Borough of Haringey including Finsbury Park, Parkland
Walk and also Alexandra Park. It is possible to cycle from Finsbury Park
along the Parkland Walk as far as Archway Road, and also from Alexandra
Palace Park to Muswell Hill Road. Unfortunately, cyclists are then required to
use the road network to the west and also to the south both of which are busy
roads.

There have been proposals to effectively continue the route west from the
northern section of Parkland walk from Muswell Hill Road, following the old
Alexandra Palace railway line around the north and western edge of Highgate
Wood. This proposal was not viable due to the large footprint of the Tube
Network’s servicing yard which effectively blocks the route just south of
Lanchester Gardens.

The case is made that cyclists should be allowed the option of using the
pathway in Highgate Wood that runs north/south parallel with Muswell Hill
Road. The rough non tarmacked surface will discourage cyclists from
travelling at speed and signage can be installed to encourage cyclists to
respect pedestrians and to adopt a precautionary attitude especially during
busy periods. The assumption is that the majority of commuter cyclists will
choose to ride down or up Muswell Hill Road, due to the pathway surface in
Highgate Wood and the presence of pedestrians. Those cyclists that choose
to cycle through the Wood will be able to enjoy the woodland environment and
the less steep inclines, and of course the lack of vehicles.

possible solutions worth exploring

Muswell Hill Road although a very busy route for vehicle traffic does have the
advantage of having a bus lane on the south bound side which does mean
that cyclist are separated from vehicles (apart from buses and taxis). There
are a number of maps with accident statistics for cyclists that have been made
available on the internet, and there are no incidents recorded on Muswell Hill
Road, but there have been accidents at the Archway Road intersection.

There is also the possibility of creating a purpose built contraflow route for

cyclist along Muswell Hill Road. The pavement on the western side of the

road that runs along the fence line of Highgate Wood could conceivably be

converted into a cycle lane, but clearly this would be an expensive project that
PagE 45



15.

Haringey could ill afford in the climate of continuing cuts. However, it should
be considered as an alternative, as there are no side roads or vehicle access
points.

The London Borough of Haringey refers to the promotion of cycling and
improvement of cycling provision across the Borough in their Local Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013-2026. They refer to the London Cycle Network and
give an assurance that cycling will be considered in all highway improvement
work. The Highgate Wood Manager will be making contact with the Highways
Team at Haringey and will be investigating what plans the Local Authority
have for improving cycling provision on Muswell Hill Road.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

16.

17.

The proposal contributes to producing a Clean, Pleasant and Attractive City
(Objective CPAC4) and to Conserve and Protect Biodiversity (Goal 15) in the
Community Strategy. It will help fulfil the Department’s Strategic Goals and
Objectives 2 (To adopt sustainable and sensitive working practices, promote
biodiversity and protect the Open Spaces for the enjoyment of future
generations) and 5 (To ensure that the profile of the Open Spaces is further
recognised through working in partnership with others to promote our sites
and through influencing policies at a local, regional and national level).

Allowing cycling in Highgate Wood would also conflict with key objectives in
the Highgate Wood Conservation Management Plan. The management of
visitor pressure and the vulnerability of the Ancient Woodland habitat are both
key issues and are referenced in the policy section of the document (Section
D).

Implications

18.

Should the decision be taken to lift the ban on cycling in Highgate Wood a
number of changes would have to be made to the entrances to allow access
for cyclists. The existing entrances with integral barriers would need to be
modified, and signage would need to be changed. The other important factor
would be the amendment to the existing Bye Laws requiring the approval of
the Secretary of State. All the above would have costs implications.

Conclusion

19.

Highgate Wood is an Ancient Woodland site, and Ancient Woodland is a
vulnerable habitat. Add to that the additional factor of the urban location of
the site and the increasing numbers of users visiting the site, are a growing
concern. Against these concerns the Highgate Wood Joint Consultative
Committee needs to consider the obvious benefits of cycling and the added
attraction of being able to cycle in a woodland setting without the danger of
road vehicles.

Appendices

None

Page 44



Background Papers

e Transport for London. ‘Travel in London: Report 4’. Available to view or
download from: http://www.tfl.gov.uk/cdn/static/cms/documents/travel-in-
london-report-4.pdf

Jonathan Meares

Highgate Wood, Conservation, Trees and Sustainability Manager
Open Spaces

T: 07500 786 067

E: Jonathan.meares@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 45


http://www.tfl.gov.uk/cdn/static/cms/documents/travel-in-london-report-4.pdf
http://www.tfl.gov.uk/cdn/static/cms/documents/travel-in-london-report-4.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Agenda Iltem 8

Committee(s): Date(s):
Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park 20 January 2015
Committee (For Decision)

Highgate Wood Joint Consultative Committee (For 22 April 2015
Information)

Subject: Public

The State of UK Public Parks 2014 — Renaissance to Risk?

Report of: For Information
Director of Open Spaces

Summary

The recent Heritage Lottery Fund report ‘The State of UK Public Parks 2014 —
Renaissance to Risk?’ provides an important insight into the current state of
Parks in the UK. This report summarises the key findings and considers the
issues that are particular relevant to the City of London; both in managing
green spaces across London and in supporting the wider green space agenda
across London.

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to:
¢ Note the report; and

e Consider the following:-

i. appoint the Chairman of the Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood
and Queen’s Park Committee as the Park Champion in
recognition of his/her role working with stakeholders at each open
space; or

ii. seek to appoint those Members of the Hampstead Heath,
Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park Committee, the Highgate
Wood Joint Consultative Committee, and the Queen’s Park Joint
Consultative Group who are elected local Councillors as Park
Champions for Hampstead Heath, Golders Hill Park, the
Hampstead Heath Extension, Highgate Wood, and Queen’s Park;
or

iii. approve a ‘do nothing’ approach on the basis that the City of
London Corporation already has comprehensive consultative and
partnership arrangements in place for Hampstead Heath,
Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park.

Page 47



Main Report

Background

1. On June 3" 2014, the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) published a report entitled
‘The State of UK Public Parks 2014 — Renaissance to risk?’ a copy is
attached at Appendix 1. HLF commissioned three surveys and compared
results with pre-existing data to identify current issues and challenges.

2. The independent surveys sought views from:-
e Local Authority Park Managers
e Park Friends and User groups

e Public Opinion by Ipsos MORI
Current Position

3. The HLF report demonstrates that the condition of parks across the UK has
improved significantly since 2001. However, the surveys show that the future
for parks is very uncertain. With government funding reducing by 20% in real
terms in the last four years and future reductions expected, parks as a non-
statutory service are highly vulnerable. The decline in spending is likely to be
greater than public parks faced in the 1970 and 1980’s; a period of chronic
decline for UK parks. Unlike built facilities where closure is immediately clear,
the reduction in park maintenance may go unnoticed until neglect results in a
spiral of decline and sites are abandoned by the public. The report suggests
that by 2020, some local authority’s Parks Services may no longer be viable.

4. The cost to users. Most local authorities have increased fees for the use of
facilities in the last 3 years and expect to continue this trend. The report
highlights that charges need to be balanced against the provision of
accessible services, to as wide a range of people as possible. At the very time
when the need to tackle obesity and poor health is essential, the cost of
sports facilities and activity is increasing. Further, 19% of local authorities
surveyed mentioned disposing of parks and 45% are considering the disposal
of some open spaces.

5. Loss of staff and skills. The survey results identify that 77% of councils have
reduced frontline staff and 81% park managers. The loss of skills and staff
results in less ability to support community groups, innovate or share
management skills. The report highlights the importance of volunteers
receiving training from motivated, skilled staff.

6. Regional inequalities. The largest proportion of good parks is found in London
and the East Midlands, with the parks currently most in decline in Scotland,
Wales and the North West. Urban metropolitan and unitary authorities, where
the use of parks is greatest, received a higher proportion of cuts and staff
losses in the last three years.

Page 48



Communities. The number of Friends and user groups has increased by 30%
in the last three years and membership by 47%. There are some 5,000
groups across the UK raising a significant £30million each year.

Quality of Life. User’s value parks with 68% considering them important or
essential to their quality of life; in urban areas this increases to 71% for
family’s and over 81% for those with children under five years old. The report
summarises why parks matter under the headings of:

e Family life

e Supporting health and happiness

e Improving social cohesion

e Promoting local economic development

e Delivering environment services

Call to action. The HLF report concludes that the research provides an early
warning of the potential risk facing the UK’s parks and sets out five key
challenges for the future, calling on government, local authorities, business,
the voluntary sector, academic institutions and the public, to take urgent
action.

In summary, the challenges include:-

e Local authority commitment — ongoing and renewed commitment to
fund staff and manage parks. Local authorities are asked to appoint an
elected member as their Parks Champion, to report annually on the
spend per resident in caring for parks and to commit to the provision of
good accessible parks and a green space strategy.

e New partnerships — opportunities to diversify resourcing and establish
long term viable partnerships require skills, commitment and resources.
Consider opportunities to create innovative new partnerships to fund
and manage parks and develop business management skills for staff.

e Getting communities more involved — expand the use of volunteers,
with training and motivation to encourage their work; consider using
existing national campaigns to support this work

e Collecting and sharing data — comparable data is essential to ensure
consistency in park provision. HLF will support a pilot project to help
the UK’s top 20 cities to compare the quantity, condition and funding of
their parks. Government, the Local Government Association and
academic organisations are asked to facilities the collection of
comparable data for local authorities.

e New finance models and rethinking delivery — the future of parks will
depend on developing new business models. A mix of public and
private resource and expertise need to stimulate innovation, develop
skills and share ideas.

Page 49



Considerations for the City of London’s Open Spaces

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The Committee may consider the five HLF challenges from two perspectives;
firstly, as the authority responsible for the green spaces in the Square Mile
and secondly, as the provider of strategic green space across London. A
commentary on some of the issues raised in the report is provided at
Appendix 2.

Challenge one - Local authority commitment. The Corporation provides the
core funding for both City Gardens and the strategic green spaces across
London, demonstrating a substantial on-going commitment. The regular
satisfaction survey undertaken for City Gardens and reported to your
Committee, demonstrates a high level of public satisfaction. We do not
receive information from London Borough satisfaction surveys; where our
strategic green spaces are located within or adjacent to a Borough, for
example West Ham Park and Newham , Queens Park and Brent. Each site
does undertake a varying range of user and non-user surveys, as well as
participating in Green Flag and Heritage Green Flag judging.

The Open Spaces Act of 1878 and the various site specific statutes, afford
protection, preventing open spaces use other than specific, defined activities,
which addresses the HLF concerns but is not afforded to all public parks. The
Committee at its last meeting on 2™ June, approved for public consultation,
the City of London Open Spaces Strategy Supplementary Planning document.
The HLF report calls for the appointment of Parks Champions and regular
reporting of the spend per resident, used to care for parks. With Chairmen for
each open space committee, Members views are sought on whether this
provides a suitable level of Champion. The current budget for each
Committee is a public document but we do not provide a link between spend
and users. For City Gardens, this would need to demonstrate the use by City
workers, as well as residents. The cost per resident would not be readily
identifiable for the strategic spaces.

Challenge two — New Partnerships. The charitable trust model used by the
Corporation to manage the strategic green spaces is considered an exemplar
within the sector. However, relatively few similar examples exist e.g. Milton
Keynes, because of the inability of local authorities to resource core property
based, ring-fenced investment funding. Many Leisure Trusts rely on annual
revenue grants from their local authorities, which are at risk as and when local
authority budgets are reduced. For our strategic spaces, the statutory
protection of the sites has limited the opportunity to develop some new
partnerships. It is hoped that this can be addressed in the coming years. The
challenges of delivering the savings required by the service based review, will
provide the opportunity to review our current service delivery and should
create the incentive to consider innovative new partnerships, as well as
renewing and reinvigorating existing partnerships.

Challenge three — Getting Communities _more involved. The HLF report
recognises the importance of training and motivating volunteers and the value

Page 50



15.

16.

of supporting them through skilled, experience staff. The City is able to
exemplify the commitment it has to volunteering, a report on last year’s
achievements is included on the same agenda. City Gardens have supported
the newly formed Friends of City Gardens, who are already achieving new
sources of grant support; likewise the Friends of Kenley Common have been
essential to achieving the HLF grant for Kenley Airfield. We support both
existing and newly forming Friends groups and will need to decide how to
support the National Federation of Parks and Green Spaces. In London, the
London Parks and Green Spaces Forum (LPGSF), which has recently
achieved independent charitable status, provides information, advice and
training for Friends. The challenge for Open Spaces will be to ensure the
support for volunteers and Friends groups remains an important priority
following the outcomes of the service based review. The Love Parks Week, is
included in events programmes; although not yet heavily promoted across the
sector it is hoped in time can achieve the level of recognition of Green Flags.

Challenge four — Collecting and sharing data. The HLF demand for national
recognition of the need for collection of consistent and comparable data is
important. There will always be a challenge for us with both City Gardens and
strategic green spaces, being different from other local authority provision; for
example, within the City the use by City workers as well as residents and
strategic green spaces, providing more nature conservation objectives than
the norm. The HLF offer to develop a pilot project to help the UK’s top 20
cities compare the quantity, condition and funding of city parks is welcome.

Challenge five - New Finance Models and rethinking delivery. As part of the
service based review we will recognise the need to rethink some service
delivery and the Committee will have the opportunity to consider this further
later this year. We also expect to need to develop new skills amongst our
staff, as part of this work. With our links to LPGSF, the Parks Alliance and
contacts with other key service providers, we are in a strong position to share
ideas and innovation. It could be suggested that the biggest challenge facing
all local authorities with responsibility for parks is, how to develop self help
and support from communities to a substantial degree and continue to deliver
the core funding needed to ensure parks have a sustainable future.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

17.

The HLF report considers the future management of Parks. The City Together
Strategy theme ‘A World Class City which protects, promotes and enhances
our environment, recognises the importance of Parks and green spaces.
Likewise the Open Spaces Strategy aim is to ‘Provide safe, secure and
accessible Open Spaces and services for the benefit of London and the
nation.

Implications

18.

Financial, Legal and Property and HR- there are no direct implications in
considering and responding to this report. However, the department will be
preparing budget proposals for the Committee’s consideration as part of the
service based review; this will provide an opportunity to address some of the
issues e.g. new partnerships and innovation, mentioned in the report.

Page 51



Conclusion

19. The recently published Heritage Lottery Fund report ‘The State of UK Public
Parks 2014 — Renaissance to Risk?’ provides an important insight into the
current state of Parks in the UK. Although Parks have nationally improved
since 2001, there are significant concerns about the next six years. This
report has considered the issues that are particular relevant to the City of
London; both in managing green spaces across London and in supporting the
wider green space agenda across London; to ensure they will remain widely
accessible and sustainable.

Appendices
e Appendix 1 — Heritage Lottery Fund State of UK Public Parks 2014
Renaissance to risk?

e Appendix 2 — The State of UK Parks commentary.

Background Papers:
Green Spaces: The Benefits for London by BOP Consulting, July 2013

Sue Ireland
Director of Open Spaces

T: 020 7332 3033
E: sue.ireland@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 52






e -
N2 g
RIS L S

9]

[




Ve

« Renaissance 1o risk?

‘ A;‘-"s?:

As a result of the philanthropy and vision of our
Victorian forebears, the UK Is fortunate to have some

of the world’s greatest public parks, which 34 million of us
visit regularly each year. Some of our earliest childhood
memories are of visits to a local park to feed the ducks,
enjoy the playground or picnic with friends. For our
increasingly urban population the park is often the only
green space where people can meet, play, relax and
come close to nature,

But all is not well with the UK’s public parks. Most are owned and
maintained by local authorities, and increasing competition for council
funding means that many face an uncertain future.

Parks have always been a priority for the Heritage Lottery Fund.

We first started to invest in them in 1996 and have awarded over
£620million across the UK, with the Big Lottery Fund joining us to invest

a further £80million in England. Our funding has been matched with
time and money from councils and community groups, collectively
delivering a renaissance in the fortune of many parks. But our research
shows that this investment, as well as thousands of parks and green
spaces, may now be at risk,

This study, based on new research, establishes a benchmark on

the current condition of the UK's public parks whilst also looking at
how the quality and nature of parks might change in the future.

It makes suggestions for action and better ways of working, including
commitments from us here at the Heritage Lottery Fund.

We care passionately that everyone should have access to good-
quality and exciting parks. We want this report to inspire all those who
own, manage and use public parks to appreciate their importance
and the critical role they have in modern life, Parks are vital community
assets, essential to the local economy, fo public health and wellbeing,
fo fourism, to social cohesion and fo nature. We must keep them in
good heart,

Dame Jenny Abramsky
Chalr of the Heritage Lottery Fund

Page 55

Herltage Lottery Fund Siate of UK Public Porks 2014 1




The state of parks

at a glance

The UK invented the municipal park movement, an enduring
legacy of the industrial revolution that has been admired
and imitated across the world. Every park has its own story,
from Birkenhead Park in the Wirral, which opened in 1847 and
provided the model for New York's Central Park, to the Queen
Elizabeth Olympic Park, created for the London 2012 Games.

We greatly value our public parks but as a
national resource they are not represented by
any national body, nor is there any statutory
requirement governing their upkesp.

Since 1996, the Herltage Lottery Fund (HLF) has
led a parks renalssance through its investment,
and has developed knowledge and expertise
through the projects that have been funded.
This research report Is in part prompted by the
need fo protect and sustain this investment in
over 700 individual public parks. In addition,
we are also keen o support everyone who uses
and manages parks right across the UK, 1o
ensure that every community has access 1o

and can enjoy a good-qudiity local public park.

Cur research

To establish a national picture of the state
of UK parks we commissioned three new
UK-wide surveys: a survey of local authority
park managers, a survey of park friends and
user groups, and a public opinion survey
undertaken by Ipsos MORI. We have also
drawn on other pre-existing data to assess
how the condition of parks has changed
over time, and to cross-check our results.
Here we present the key findings. A fuller
research report is available on
www.hif.org.uk/StateOfUKParks

Why we need o act now

After two decades of Investment and
improvement, the UK's parks are in a good
state. However, they are at serious risk of
slipping back into decline, as they did in
the 1970s and 1980s. Without adequate
maintenance, parks become underused.
neglected and vandalised. Their immense
social and envirenmental value is quickly
eroded and they become a costly liability
for those who manaige them.

Qur research shows that malnfenance
budgets are being reduced, capital will be
less available for improvements, park facilities
are becoming more expensive to use,
management and maintenance skills are
being lost, and some parks and green spaces
may be sold or fransferred to others to malntain,

However we know that people care
passionately about their parks. We know
that good parks are vital for our health and
wellbeaing. they support economic growth
and tourism, and they play a significant part
in addressing climate change in our cities.

Al the end of this report you will find five key
areas for action. For each we set out how HLF
is Infending to respend but we alsc call on
others to work collaboratively to address this
emerging risk. Our calls fo action include:

1 renewed local authority commitment;
I establishing new partnerships;

I geftting communities more Involved;

I collecting and sharing data; and . .

I developing new finance models and
rethinking delivery.

Together we can avert this retumn to the past,
but it will require the concerted effort of all
those who use, own, manage. work In or have
an interest in parks. We must also develop new
ways of working, raise awareness of the hugely
important role parks have, and confinue to
invest in their future,

Page 56

Herltage Lottery Fund Siate of UK Public Parks 2014



estimated visits are

muade 1o the UK’'s
parks each year

70%

of park'managers
have recorded
increased visitor
numbers 1o their
principal parks

over the last year ¢
o =t e nE ey |

Key findings

86%
of park me
repori cufnn g€ r5<-_ :

revénue budgefs 2y

Since’2070 andthey.
hetrend'ts

conti

thr er;:é?:.:m e ey

L U

8i/o

of § councrl
: denarrmenﬁsm"?
“]"E‘ 1ot Skilleg &

N 5H'Ice gﬂ]u

P lme 5f ﬁe 'D

Hertage Lottery Fund Siate of UX Public Parks 2014

nf sfm‘f

SI‘ front-

£30m

estimated to be
raised each year
by park friends
and user groups

Parks are
valued and in
good heart...

83%

SO
of households = )
with children aged
five and under visit»

their local park at
leastonce aumonth:

¥ 1

47% "

. ofpark friends

and/user groups

11 say membership’

numbers have

fintcreased cver.fhg

last three years
e e

We predict that the quality and condition
of many parks will dramatically decline
if action is not taken now to address this

emerging risk.

Ly

el
iy -y A
- P
L2

of. hnuseho!ds With
'en under 10

ares cancerned fhnf

reduc Cliens in Council

“bu gets Could hmmJ

a Heg ative H'ﬂp act= .

. on ”'IE cond 5
theif locq) p”:‘;';” of

#

of local uufhornm5

are Consider;
i
either semng Parks

qn gree

‘th

o1 *mnSferrrn
qQE‘n’Ie

Ces

theijr
nrfo

..’ i\l o




Park managers report higher
visitor satisfaction, buf many
people are concerned budget
cuts could have a negative
Impact on their local park.

Hertoge Lottery Fund State of UK Public Parks 2014




What we found

The changing condition
of parks

Our surveys show that the condition of parks
across the UK has improved significantly
since 2001. However this picture is about

to change.

We found that 59% of park managers, as well
as 50% of friends groups and the park-going
public, considered their parks to be in good
condition. In 2001 only 18% of park managers

considered their parks fo be In good condition.

The improvement in parks is reflected in the
number of Green Flag Awards (the voluntary,
nationally recognlised qualify accreditation
scheme for parks and green spaces). In 2001
Green Flags were awarded to only 81 parks in
England. By 2010 this had risen to 905, and by
2013 there were 1,116 awards.

Woe also recorded Increases in visitor
satisfaction and numbers, 50% of managers
sald that visitor satisfaction had increased
over the |ast three years, and 47% reported that
visitor numbers had risen over the iast year.

For principal parks (the main parks a council
manages) 70% of park managers said that
visitor numbers had risen over the last year.

Turning to the condition of parks over the
coming three years, we found that only
21% of managers and 32% of friends groups

Herltags Lottery Fund State of UK Publiic Parks 2014

anticipate that their parks will stlll be
improving, while 37% of managers and 34%
of friends groups anticipate that their parks
will be declining.

Evidence suggests that the renaissance of

our public parks that has been underway for
the past 15 vears is fast coming to an end.

Our Ipsos MORI survey found that 63% of the
park-going publlc are either *fairly concerned’
or ‘very concerned’ that reduced councii
budgets could have a negative impact on
the condition of their local park. This level of
concern increases to 74% for those who also
say that thelr local park is currently In poor
conditlon. And 71% of households with children
under 10 are concerned that reductions

in council budgets could have a negative
impact on the condition of thelr local park.

“Parks and open spaces
have been an easy
hit for council savings.
The provision and
mainfenance of open
space is not a statutory
requirement.”

Park manager
]

Page 59




What we found

Pressure on budgets

The Audit Commission' reporis thai
Governmeni funding to local authorities
reduced by an average of almos! 20% in
rect terms between 2010-11 and 2013-14.
Some of the poeorest counclis In the most
deprived aregs of Englond have experienced
curmulative cuts that wlil average 25% by
20162 Counclil budgets cre expected fo
continue falling for the rest of the decade.

As parks are a non-statutory service, their
budgets are highly vulnerable. We.found that:

I most parks budgets have been cut since
2010. many above the 20% average
reported by the Audit Commission;

1 86% of park managers report that revenue
budgets for day-to-day maintenance have
been cut;

1 over half of park managers report that
capital budgets for investing In fabric and
facilities, such as play areas, tollets and
paths, have been cut.

This situation is likely to worsen. The Local
Government Association?® warns that, for
England, funding for services other than
soclal care and waste disposal will drop by
46% by 2020, Our survey shows that over the

next three years:

1 87% of park managers expect further cuts
fo revenue budgets;

1 63% of managers also face further cuts
fo capital budgets.

“Floral features
removed, no budgef
for infrastructure
maintenance. We have
substantially increased
park charges
fo compensate.”

Park manager
]

Page 60

This decline In spending is potentially greater
and more rapid than that faced by public
parks in the 1970s and 1980s, a time of chronic
decline in the state of the UK's parks.

To give an example of the scale of cuts,
Liverpool City Council’s parks department
budget of £10million will be cut by 50% over
the next three years?t,

Unllke some cuts 1o services, such as closing
a lelsure centre or lbrary, reductions in park
maintenance may go unnoficed before a
tipping point is reached. The reduction of
management tasks such as grass cutting,
weeding beds or repairing seats may initially
result in few complaints, but eventually

the build-up of neglect may lead o the
abandonment of the park by the public.

A spiral of decline quickly follows.

Those working in parks voice concem that by
2020 some local quthority park services will

no lohger be viable. A report by the Joseph
Rowntree Foundation® suggests that local
government may cease o provide some
services altogether, transferring responsibilities
to other agencies, sectors and partnerships.

The cost 1o park users

Over the last three years most local
authorities have increased charges for
facilities in parks.

I 83% of managers reported increasing fees
for facilities such as sports pitches, car parks,
dlloiments and the hire of grounds or buildings
for private events;

1 85% of managers Intend to increase fees
In the next three vears.

While revenue generation needs to be part
of the mixed economy that will support parks
in future, charges need to be balanced
against provision of accessible services to as
wide a range of people as possible. The cost
of hiring sports facilities is increasing at a time
when there is urgent need to promote active
lifestyles to tackle obesity and poor health.

Sale of parks and green spaces

A significant number of authorities
are consldering selling or transferring
management of thelr parks and green
spaces over the next three years.

1 45% of local authcrities are considering
disposing of some green spaces;

1 19% of local authorities specifically
mentioned disposing of parks as opposed
to other green spaces.

Hertage Loftery Fund Stale of UK Public Parks 2014



Buildings in parks are at risk
of being sold, and parks
decline where there Is alack
of investment.

Page 61

Herltage Lotiery Fund Stode of UK Public Parks 2014 7




Whai we found

“Our park ranger
service fook a 50% cut -
the rangers have gone
from a team of 32 to 10
in the last three years.”

Park manager
|

Loss of staff and skills

In terms of funding and staffing, park
managers in the North West of England are
reporting the highest proportion of cuts to
revenue over the last three years and are also
expecting the highest cuts to both revenue
and capital over the next three years. They
also reported the highest loss of frontline and
management staff over the last three years.

The North East and Yorkshire and the Humber
expect high levels of budget cuts and staff
loss over the next three years, but the limited
number of survey returns from these particular
regions precludes firm conclusions.

Qur research suggests a proportionately
higher level of budget cuts and staff losses in
the north of England. Furthermore, the urban
metropolitan and unitary auihorities, where
the use of parks Is greatest, received a higher
proportion of cuts and staff losses in the last
three years. This trend is expected to continue.

The power of communities

The staffing of parks has fallen in line
with the decline In funding over the last
three years.

I 77% of counclis have reduced frontline
parks staff and

1 81% of councils have cut park
management staff,

The loss of park management staff means
that local authorities will be much less able

to suppori the work of community groups,
promofe innovation or assist the process of
transferring or sharing management with local
organisations and partners.

Evidence from Lottery-funded projects shows
that volunteering plays a critical part In creating
vibrant community parks. If, however, groups
are not developed, tralned and motivated by
skilled staff, volunteer numbers quickly dwindle.

Regional inequdlities

Qur survey of park managers highlights
that there are differences in the condition
and funding of parks across the UK.

The largest proportion of good parks
is in London and the East Midlands.

The largest proportion of parks reported
to have improved over the last three vears
is in London and the East of England.

The largest proportion of parks declining
is In Scotland, Wales and the North West
of England.

Page 62

Community groups have an increasing role
in championing and supporilng local parks.
In the last three years:

I managers have seen an increase of over
30% in the number of friends and user
groups, and over half of managers expect
this to continue;

I 47% of groups have seen an increase
in membership.

There are an estimated 5,000 friends groups
or park user groups across the UK. Each
group raises on average £6,900 per year,
representing over £30million raised for parks
annually.

Impact on qudlity of life

Those who use parks value them highly.
Some 68% of park users consider spending
time in their local park important or essentiai
o their quality of life. This rises to 71% for
park users in urbon creas, and over 81% for
households with children under 10.

The highest percentage of park users are those
households with children. 83% of households
with children aged five and under visit their
local park at least once a month. In the UK

It Is astonishing that almest 600 milllion visits

are estimated to be made by households with
children under the age of 16 each year. In
total 2.6 billion visits are estimated to be made
to the UK’s parks each year.

Heritage Lottery Fund Slate of UK Public Parks 2014



Parks provide a range of
volunteering opportunities,
and make ¢ recl diference
to family life.

Skilled staff are needed
to maintain horticulture
in historic parks.

Herlfcge Loftery Fund State of UK Public Parks 2014 9




Local urban parks are oflen
the enly green spaces where
people can meed, play

and relax.

10 Herliage Lottery Fund State of UK Public Parks 2014



Why parks matter

Central to family life

Some of our earllest childhood memories
include visits to local parks. Socially, parks
offer opportunities to rest and meet friends,
for children and young people to play, to hold
events, to pass through on the way to work, to
exerclse and take time out from the pressures
of everyday life.

Ofther reports also acknowledge the
importance of parks fo children. Making Britain
Great for Children and Familles® - a manifesto
launched by 4Children. the natlonal charity
working towards a more integrated approach
to children’s services - includes better -
provision of parks In Its list of ways to create
good places for children to grow up in.

Supporting health
and happiness

Parks have a positive effect on people's
wellbeing and the health of their
nelghbourhoods. Evidence from the University
of Exeter's European Centre for Environment
and Human Health, published by the
Association for Psychological Science’, reveals
that people who live in greener urban areas
report greater wellbeing and lower levels of
mental stress than city dwellers without nearby
parks and gardens.

An Increase in visitor numbers, particularly in
urban parks, was recorded by Natural England
in their annual Monitor of Engagement with
the Naturat Environment (MENE) surveyse.

In 2012-13 there were fewer visits fo the
countryside and a significant Increase in visits
to green spaces in towns and cities. This points
to the growing importance of parks as the only
place some people encounter nature,

The Sfate of the Natfon’s Waistiine report®,
published by the National Obesity Forum,
states that over 25% of adults in England

are considered obese, By 2050 the figure is
expected to rise to 50%. Parks provide vital
health resources that help to support healthy
populaticns. Their value to public health Is
emphasised in Public Health and Landscape,
arecent position statement by the Landscape
Institute!, which demonstrates parks are a key
ingredient in creating healthy places.

Heritage Lottery Furd State of UK Public Parks 2014

“Parks are particularly
important as for many
people they provide
their back garden.”

HLF Parks for People
programme evaluation”

Page 65

11



Why parks matter

Parks are great biodiversity
hotspots and a place where
children can learn about nature.

They also provide opportuniiies
for local businesses such as
cafés, and help to support local
economies.

Page 66

12 Hertage Lottery Fund State of UK Public Parls 2014




lrmproving social cohesion

Recent research highlights that “thers Is
good evidence suggesting that the natural
environment contributes fo soclal cohesion.
This appedars fo be porticularly the case

for well-maintained green spaces*™2, An
example from Chicago suggests that parks
can actlvely promote “inter-community
relations in @ way which is almost unigue In
urban life”, A Joseph Rowntree report'® notes
that, as communitles across the UK become
increasingly mixed and diverse, local social
amenities will become more and more
important. Public parks offer one of the most
important social spaces In a neighbourhood,
but. as interviews in the research highlight,
their condition is a key issue, as poor-quality
parks can have a detrimental effect on
cohesion.

Promoting local economic
development

Public parks have been used throughout
history to promote investment and growth.
Developers frequently use the proximity of
parks to attract Investors. A study on improving
the competitiveness of England’s core cities'®
notes that *soft location factors are an
increasingly important part of economic
decislon-making”. Good-quality parks and
public spaces contribute to these factors,
which help to atfract and retqin skilled
workers and thelr families.

Forward-looking cities with a good
environment and easy access to natural
amenities are working at preserving and
improving therm. They know that for skilled
employees “the quality of life for themselves
and their familles Is an increasingly important
factor™® of location. Recent research

from Natural England” draws together a
growing evidence bose on ways the natural
environment, including parks, can enhance
the economic competitiveness of a particular
region and increase employee productivity.

Good parks also boost the tourlst economy.
Visit Britain'® has found that, of the

31 million tourists visiting Britain, over a third
enjoy visiting a park or garden, making it cne
of the most popular activities (fanking above
visiting a museum, castle, historic house or art
gallery). Clissold Park, a local neighbourhood
park in the London Borough of Hackney,
receives the same number of annual visitors
as London’s National Portrait Gallery, and
more than St Paul’s Cathedral (2.1 miliion,

2.1 million and 1.8 million visitors respectively),

Heritage Lottery Fund Staie of UK Public Parks 2014

Investing in parks Is a recognised way of
helping to regenerate and re-vitalise an area,
There are economic indicators to show this
works, and strong evidence of the impact

of parks in profecting and enhancing land
and property values. The presence of a well-
maintained park has been shown through
research by CABE Space™ to add on average
o 5% to 7% premium on house prices. Equally,
a declining park has the opposife effect.

“Open space
provides habitals and
green corridors for safe
species movement.
(i) should be valued for
its potential fo mitigate
climate change.”

Park manager
]

Delivering environmental
services

Parks are a key component of the

‘green infrastructure” of fowns and clties,
complementing the heavily englneered and
costly ‘grey infrastructure’ of roads, utliities
and sewerage systemns. Properly planned,
attractive green networks of parks, green
spaces and river corridors provide natural
systems and ecological services that collect
and clean water, improve air quality and
reduce peak summer femperatures. There is
increasing interest in parks” ability to improve
the resllience of neighbourhoods to the
impacts of climate change.

Parks also provide biodiversity hotspots. The
qualities of an ecolegically rich functional
landscape were bullt inte London’s Olympic
Park at the outset. As the UK’s newest large
public park, it not only provided an attractive
and dramatic setting for the London 2012
Garmes but also continues to reduce flood risk,
store surface water, and accommodate a rich
diversity of plant and animal specles.

Page 67



A call
o action

Our research provides an
early warning of the potentiai
risk facing the UK's parks. it is
a risk that can be averted if
action is taken in time.

Here we set out five key
challenges for the future.

For each we state how HLF
intends to respond, together
with calls on Government,
local authorities, business,

the voluntary sector, academic
institutions and the public

to take urgent action.

14

Local authority commitment

Lo

dio almiost doubie by
y fundiria and
=T “"r

O pariners

s: Budget cutsand the

Park User groups confribute valuable volurteer time
nding | parks Thare are mon than 5,000
roups inthe estimated o prov almost o
volunteer doays ond genarafing 30milllen
ar throughn fundralsing, How el more
support o expand this work. When grou 1re talned
and motivafed, they are botter abl

New finance models
and rethinking delivery

The future of mary parks
=1k 21 |

3 sitllls and
share ideas

Heritage Lottery Fund Siate of UK Public Parks 2014



HLF will actively monitor

and champion parks projects
we have funded fo ensure
standards are maintained,
and wili evaluate projects

fo demonstrale the value of
investing In public parks.

HLF will use our Parks for People.
Start-Up Grants and Rethinking
Parks programmes (see 5
below) to support a greater
diversity of organisations in
managing public parks.

HLF wiif suppott people to

take o more active role in the
parks projecis we fund through
invesiing in training, resources
and activities to encourage
cnd promote volunieering.

HLF will encourage the
development of a pilot project
1o help ihe UX's top 20 cities
compare the quoniity, condition
and funding of thelr city parks.

HLF, fhe Big Lottery Fund and
Nesta wiil invest up to S1mitiion
through our Rethinking Parks
programme to enceurage
innovation. The funding will
support projects to develop
creative new approaches to

Heritage wottery Fund 5iale of UK Public Parks 2014

financing and managing parks,

HLF will invest up to £2dmillior:
per annum in public parks
and cemeteries until the

end of our current strategic
framework period in 2018, with
the Big Lottery Fund investing
an additional £10million per
annum in England until the
end of 2015

HLF wili commission and
pubiish ¢ second Stare of
UK Public Parks siudy in

2016 fo moniior chenges in
the condition, guality ong
resourcing of the UK's pubiic
parks.

Page 69

15



References

Audit Commission (2013). Tough fimes 2013,
Council’s responses o financial challenges
from 2010-17 fo 2013-14. p21

The Guardian (2014). Local government
culs hitting poorest areas hardest, figures
show. (30 January 2014}

Local Government Association (2013).
Future funding outlook for councils from
2010-11 fo 2019-20. pb

Horticulture Week (2014). Liverpool mayor
confirms further 50 per cent funding cut for
cify’s parks. (accessed 6 June 2014)
www.horfweek.com/Parks_and_gardens/
article/1228208/liverpool-mayor-confirms-
further-50-per-cent-funding-cut-citys-parks/
?DCMP=EMC-CONArbaoriculture%20News

Joseph Rowntree Foundation (2013). Coping
with the cuts? Local government and poorer
communities. Joseph Rowntree Foundation
and the University of Glasgow. p4

4Children (2014). Making Brifain Great for
Chiidrerr and Familles. (accessed 6 June 2014)
www.4children.org.uk/Page/manifesto-2014

APS (2013). Green Spaces May Boost
Well-Being for Cify Slickers. Press release,
Psychological Science, 22 April 2013.
(accessed 6 June 2014)
www.psychologicalscience.orgfindex.php/
news/releases/green-spaces-may-boost-
well-being-for-city-slickers.ntmi

Natural England (2013). Montitfor of
Engagement with the Natural Environment.
p27

16

9@ National Obesity Forum (2014). Stafe of the
Nation’s Waistline. (accessed & June 2014)
www.nationalobeasityforum.org.uk/media/
PDFs/StateCfTheNationsWaistlineObesity
inftheUK AnalysiscndExpectations.pdf

10 Landscape Institute (2013). Public Health
and Landscape. (accessed 6 June 2014)
www.landscapeinstitute.co.uk/PDF/
Confribute/PublicHealthandLandscape_
CreatingHealthyPlaces_FINAL.pdf

11 Heritage Lottery Fund (2013). Parks for People
impact Evaiuation. Main Report 2013. p133

12 Natural Engidnd (2014). Microeconomic
Evidence for the Benefits of invesiment in
the Environment 2 (MEBIE2). p64

13 Ibld. p65

14 Joseph Rowntree Foundation (2008).
immigration and Social Cohesion in the UK.
Hickman M. et al.

16 ODPM (2004). Competitive European Citles:
Where Do the Core Cities Stand? Office
of the Deputy Prime Minister: London. p6l

16 Ibid. p6l

17 Natural England 2014). ppl15-19

18 Visht Britain (2013). Overseas visifors love our
parks and gardens. {accessed 6 June 2014)
www.visitoritaln.org/mediaroom/
pressreleases/parksandgardens.aspx

19 CABE Space (2005). Does Money Grow on
Trees? Commission for Architecture and the
Built Environment. London.

Page 70

Heritage Lottery Fund State of UK Pubillc Parks 2014



Acknowledgements

Resadrch supparting his reparn wos
ungsriaken lar HLF by Petal Neal
Consulting and Community Frat
Parinership In Gszocialion with
Falar Hamikifromthe Centro lor Clty
Park Exceliance in Washington DC
Ben Hurley Campnunications,

Er Edward Hebson and |psosMORL

HLUF 1% patficulady gratetul o all the lecal
autharlly pork managers, nends of
parks and park usargraupl who gave
thair time fo complete Ihe surveys
providing the evidencs for kg study
We-also wish fo ceknowladoge the suppord
fer Ihis study frarms

Association of Public Setvice Excsllencs

girminghom Soon Spoces Forum

Gresn Connec)
Gregnspace Scaficnd

Gresnapoace Soulh Eost

Gregnspace Waolss

Groundwork UK

Xeap Brilain Tidy and the
Gregn Fludg Awdrd Scheme

Landon Farks Benchmarking Group
tondon Pouks ond Graen Spaced Farum

Nationcl Fedamation of Parks
and Green Spocos

Hatural England
Newcaslle Parks Forum

Wasl Midlands Parks Foram

Production

Fhotography:

Cavand and fop of pagoe 3

Ersiman MurayfGoodioxdiufas com
Pags 1 Janny Alsramsky © Debrg
Hurford Brown

Poge 4 & Darmian Wolker

Page 7 velinteess © Lol Gllgert
cyelists and floral features 2 Nigel Hilllor
Page 108 Domion Walker

Pags 11 © Nigel Hilier

Page 12, fhis|les & LDA Deslgn/Rabin
Forsiarn pond-gipping € Nigal Hillior

Pesignad by therighlsiulidesign.co.uk

Panted on Cocoon SHk, o 100% post-
consumed o yeled fioie stock whilch) s
FSC* recyeled certiicd and EU Ecalabe)
cerfifed, It 5 Process Chlarine Free and
manifociured oS0 14001, minimising
negative impaats an the envimonment

HeriloE Lottery Fund

Lsing money mised ihroual 1he
Nitional Lattery, HUF sustalns andg
franatonms awide mngeof hanfoge for
presan! and luture ganorations o folkes
part in, leam romeand enjoy. Fram
museuma parks and histone ploces o
archaeoiogy, naiural anvifenment ang
cUlluml froditions, we nvest inevery poart
of our diverse hariage. HLF wan sat up in
1994 and |s the anly hentags body thal
opaated dorass the whole of e UK

Ifix ggmmisteras Dy thetrustees of the
Nafional Herlogs Memarial Fund

Hicxd office

T Holbain Ploica
Lendan
SWIW BNR

Tel 020 7591 &000

Fom 020 7591 4001
fextphone. 020 7591 83556
Web: wiww hitlong Uk

’ parksmattard hotllageslatiarny

W hikorg Lk StateOTUEPorks




-.-}:‘|
“=

y

o :-.."I + e
"“"I{%.::_ E r

e L
-"--1.4_

P
-

»
ol . _" .

'rf \dhi ..hq"-

.a_ J"h’ ""l '.'"t} A




The State of UK Parks Commentary

Appendix 2

Topic

Remarks

Changing condition of parks

The HLF report provides evidence to
support concerns being expressed within
the sector.

Budget pressures

Both City Gardens and Open Spaces
have been subject to financial pressures
over the last five years; in line with other
City of London services. However, during
the last 15-20 years unlike local
authorities, these spaces had not had to
cope with sustained budget reductions.
Currently, as part of the service based
review, we will be considering proposals
for some 15% reduction over the next
four years. This is a significant challenge
for all services, doing more with less and
finding different ways to provide services.

Charges for services

Historically, local authority sport provision
has been subsidised; including football,
cricket, tennis, bowls and swimming. Any
changes to charging policy have to take
account of other local providers, as well
as meeting the challenge of ensuring

facilities are accessible. There are
inconsistencies in our approach, for
example, on car parking, where

increased charges are warranted.

Staff and skills

We have evidence of the impact of
reduced local authority management,
having recently struggled to achieve
strong short-lists for several middle
management posts. Many of the potential
middle managers have either moved into
the consultancy field or left the sector.
With changing requirements, new skills
need to be developed.

To provide appropriate support and
development for volunteers, it s
important to use the knowledge, skill,
enthusiasm and experience of staff. We
are developing volunteers who can
supervise and/ or lead teams but the
need for experience remains a key factor

Page 73




in ensuring volunteering is sustainable.

Community groups

Our City gardens and Open Spaces are
supported by a wide ranging network of
support from local communities; including
Consultative Committees, user groups,
volunteers and Friends. We can
demonstrate that these are growing, for
example the new Friends of City
Gardens and Kenley Common.

Quiality of Life

The City of London report published in
July 2013 “Green Spaces: The Benefits
for London” recognised the
environmental, physical, mental health,
social and economic benefits of green
space in London.

Page 74




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Superintendent's Update Report
	5 Open Spaces Legislation
	Appendix 1 - Open Spaces Legislation - Public Briefing Paper NLOS

	6 Update on Tree Safety Management at the North London Open Spaces Division
	Appendix 1 Tree Safety Policy

	7 Cycling in Highgate Wood
	8 The State of UK Public Parks 2014 - Renaissance to Risk?
	Appendix 1-The State of UK Public Parks 2014v2.docx
	Appendix 2 - State of UK parks Commentary


